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INTRODUCTION

Following the Olympic highs of 2016, the Badminton World Federation 
buckled down for a year of consolidation as we continued to 
enhance all areas of our work. This included the areas of governance, 
administration, commercial and media rights, development of 
the sport, athlete support and services, the presentation of our 
tournaments, showcasing star quality players and the integrity of 
badminton.

2017 saw us take a number of strategic decisions which will enhance 
our business in the coming years as our sport maintains and intensifies 
its upward trajectory in a competitive global sports marketplace.

Whilst this report reflects on 2017 and the really great achievements 
for BWF and our sport, we must remain forward thinking and to 
innovate and enhance what we do. We must be ready to seize on 
opportunities that bring new possibilities for badminton in order to 
optimize our competitive advantage in a global sports market. In this 
report, we will also share our vision to enhance badminton’s future.

2017 HIGHLIGHTS

COUNCIL ELECTIONS

The Annual Meeting of Saturday 20 May 2017, ushered in a Council 
equally enthusiastic and committed as the previous Council to our 
vision of popularising badminton globally. 

It was a great honour to be re-elected President of the BWF for another 
four year term (2017-2021), encompassing the Tokyo 2020 Olympic 
and Paralympic Games. Our Deputy President Gustavo Salazar 
Delgado and BWF Vice-President – Para-Badminton, Paul Kurzo were 
also re-elected unopposed while 11 sitting Council members were re-
elected. Unfortunately Gustavo Salazar decided in June to take a leave 
of absence due to personal circumstances.

There were some new faces on Council, and I was pleased to welcome 
Tang Jiu Hong (China), Moosa Nashid (Maldives), Battushig Batbold 
(Mongolia), Danlami Zama Sanchi (Nigeria), Emma Mason (Scotland), 
Robbert de Kock (Switzerland) and Khunying Patama Leeswadtrakul 
(Thailand) as well as incoming Chair of the BWF Athletes’ Commission, 
Koen Ridder (Netherlands), to the BWF Council which also includes 
the five continental vice-presidents.

The Council represents the diversity of our badminton communities, 
and I was really pleased to note that the election results meant that we 
had a record seven women – representing four of our five continental 
confederations. I must congratulate Khunying Patama Leeswadstrakul 
who became a member of the IOC in September 2017. This is a great 
honor for Khunying Patama, and for the whole BWF family.

As we build on the important achievements of the 2013-2017 
cycle, I wish to take this opportunity to thank all those who served 
on the previous BWF Council as well as to thank our 189 Member 
Associations for the confidence which they have placed in me and the 
BWF Council (2017 – 2021).

And finally, the AGM confirmed Justian Suhandinata as Honorary 
Life Vice President. Justian’s passion for, and commitment to 
the development of badminton has a long history at the national, 
continental and world level and he has held many leadership roles in 
badminton for more than 40 years. It was very fitting that we honoured 
Justian in this way.

PRESIDENT’S 
REVIEW
POUL-ERIK HØYER – PRESIDENT
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TRIBUTE

At this point, I wish to pause in tribute and to acknowledge two BWF 
colleagues who passed away in 2017.

BWF Council member, Dr. Akhilesh Das Gupta, passed away suddenly 
in April. He was President of the Badminton Association of India and 
he spearheaded badminton’s rise in popularity and prominence in 
his homeland, with players such as Saina Nehwal, Pusarla V Sindhu, 
Kashyap Parupalli and Kidambi Srikanth reaching the sport’s starry 
heights. While his visionary leadership will be missed, we trust his 
legacy will be an inspiration to generations of Indian players and 
administrators to come.

I wish to also remember fondly, Tom Bacher, BWF Honorary Life Vice 
President who passed away in early October 2017. Tom was well 
known to many of you for his long and distinguished career, 24 years 
of which were spent on the BWF Council in a range of roles including 
vice-president.  As I said late last year “Tom Bacher has made an 
invaluable contribution to badminton’s global development as a 
business and a sustainable financial entity. His visionary service and 
leadership have been to the benefit of generations of players who now 
make a living from badminton”,

TOURNAMENTS

The backbone of our business is the international circuit of 
tournaments and 2017 was another exceptional year for the sport in 
this regard. The wide range of BWF sanctioned tournaments hosted in 
2017 generated hundreds of millions of views by fans, tens of millions 
in commercial and media rights revenue and millions of dollars in 
prize money for players. 

Firstly, I wish to thank all the hosts of tournaments who provide the 
best possible conditions for our players to compete. Thank you to the 
hosts of BWF Major Events, BWF World Superseries, Gold Grand Prix 

and Grand Prix tournaments together with all those at International 
Challenge and Series levels. All these tournaments make up the 
important pathways for players to compete regionally and globally. 

For major events, I wish to thank in particular, Gold Coast City and 
Badminton Australia for hosting an amazing TOTAL BWF Sudirman 
Cup 2017 – including the BWF Annual General Meeting, Member’s 
Forum and Gala Dinner. In equal measure, I wish to applaud Glasgow 
and BADMINTONscotland for graciously staging the TOTAL BWF 
World Championships 2017 and the World Coaching Conference in 
partnership with BWF.

All hosts are acknowledged and thanked for the superb delivery of our 
major tournaments. My sincere thanks to:

• Badminton Australia  -  TOTAL BWF Sudirman Cup - Gold Coast. 

• Badminton Scotland - TOTAL BWF World Championships - 
Glasgow.

• Badminton Indonesia - YONEX-SUNRISE BWF World Junior 
Championships - Yogjakarta.

• Badminton Association of India  -  MANORAMA BWF World Senior 
Championships - Cochin.

• Korea Badminton Association for the Disabled - BWF Para-
Badminton World Championships - Ulsan.

• Falcon and Associates/Dubai Sports Council - Dubai World 
Superseries Finals - Dubai.
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Sincere appreciation also goes to the hosts of all 13 legs of the MetLife 
BWF World Superseries which started with the Yonex All England 
Open Badminton Championships and concluded with the Dubai World 
Superseries Finals – the last of our four season finales in the United 
Arab Emirates. The warm hospitality as well as the efficiency and 
enthusiasm with which each of you undertook hosting these signature 
tournaments have been the collective hallmark of the Series.

CORPORATE, COMMERCIAL 
& MEDIA PARTNERS

Our corporate partners are key to our success, without whom we 
would not be able to present badminton to such a high standard. 
Thank you in particular to outgoing partners, Enterprise Sports Group 
(ESG), IMG Media and MetLife, each of whom has helped us to grow 
badminton successfully over the past six years.

In early 2017, BWF was delighted to solidify its partnership with Total  
as the energy giant extended its title-sponsorship of BWF Major 
Events for another three years from 2019 to 2021.

Having initially been title-sponsor of our championship tournaments,  
2015 - 2018, Total has remained the Official Energy Partner for all BWF 
Major Events: TOTAL BWF Sudirman Cup, TOTAL BWF Thomas & Uber 
Cup Finals and TOTAL BWF World Championships. This continuity 
augurs well for our Major Events brand and we look forward to 
another three years of mutual success and development as we build 
badminton with Total.

As we start into 2018, badminton is poised for our central partnership 
with Wanda, through its subsidiary Infront Sports and Media. We were 
delighted to work with Infront in 2017 for the start of our long term 
relationship.

NEW TOURNAMENT STRUCTURE

In March 2017, the BWF unveiled a new tournament structure and 
on the eve of starting the 2018 season, BWF announced a landmark 
partnership with HSBC as its Principal Global Partner; part of which 
is the global banking group’s title-sponsorship of the top five levels 
of our remodelled tournament series, collectively branded the HSBC 
BWF World Tour. 

On behalf of BWF, I wish to welcome HSBC to the international 
badminton family. HSBC will have a corporate presence across BWF’s 
entire suite of events, including being Premier Sponsor for the BWF 
Major Events (World Championships, Sudirman Cup and Thomas & 
Uber Cup Finals). On the development front, HSBC is the BWF Global 
Development Partner, working with us to grow badminton globally.

INNOVATION – ENHANCING 
BADMINTON’S FUTURE

For any sport to remain at the summit of the sports entertainment 
industry, it must undertake periodic self-evaluation and innovation 
to continue attracting and exciting fans – fans who have countless, 
amazing choices in a competitive global sports market. 

The BWF has been doing so and we have determined the time has 
come for us to be bolder – and to go further. Inspired by this collective 
view, the BWF Council unanimously endorsed a package of innovations 
and upgrades in November 2017 which aims to enhance and enrich 
our sport with wide-ranging initiatives that will realise badminton’s 
vast global potential; taking it to unprecedented heights in all spheres.
Some initiatives have already started and some new ones are on the 
way. One of those new ones is something we have focused on for 
some time, and that is to innovate our competition rules – in particular, 
but not only, the scoring system of our sport. The last time we made 
significant change was in 2006. 

After some testing and gathering feedback from various stakeholders, 
the BWF Council is convinced it is time to change badminton’s scoring 
system: time to bring in new peaks, more excitement and increase 
broadcast and fan appeal. At the BWF Annual General Meeting on 
19 May 2018, the BWF Council will formally propose changes to the 
technical regulations to address this and two other considerations: 

• A new and enhanced scoring system to increase the excitement 
of the sport at the top level and to shorten the length of matches 
- based on best of 5 games to 11.

• A reduction in on-court coaching – introducing time-out options 
for players.

• A service-law change with a fixed height for serves to improve the 
quality and consistency of service judging.

In implementing these enhancements, our key objectives are to 
build suspense quicker (more intensity in matches; to increase the 
excitement in matches; and to shorten the length of matches (to 
optimise television broadcasts). This is a collective journey on which 
we are seeking to embark on, in this regard, we have circulated detailed 
information to our 189-strong membership and other stakeholders.

We provide more details of how we wish to enhance our sport in the 
following pages of this report which I invite you to read and engage 
with the Council on this vision.

We look forward to interacting with our membership on this significant 
step and ultimately to have their strong support in our quest to do 
what is best for badminton. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Without doubt, the past year has been a critical one in which we 
achieved significant goals and positioned BWF and badminton on the 
road to a more prosperous future.

It has been a collective effort by countless people and organisations 
whom I wish to salute for their dedication. Thanks to my colleagues 
within the BWF Council and the chairs of all our committees and 
commissions for their commitment to badminton’s development 
globally. 

Sincere appreciation also goes to BWF Secretary General Thomas 
Lund and the BWF staff in Kuala Lumpur for their exceptional work, 
often above and beyond the call of duty to ensure we maintain our 
high standards and keep badminton moving in the right direction.

In addition, we are grateful to our Continental Confederations and our 
189 Member Associations for their role in promoting and developing 
badminton worldwide at all levels. Our cooperation with these key 
stakeholder groups essential to the success which badminton has 
been enjoying in various spheres.

Finally, to the many volunteers and other persons who have served our 
sport behind the scenes, away from the limelight, I wish to thank you 
all and I hope you will continue to be part of the badminton family for 
many more years.

POUL-ERIK HØYER 
BWF PRESIDENT
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INTRODUCTION

The year after the Olympic Games was a time to re-focus on the next 
four year cycle and to implement new programmes, new partnerships 
and to reaffirm existing partnerships towards Tokyo 2020.

The BWF relocated to a larger office in Kuala Lumpur in June 2017 
to facilitate its increasing number of staff to handle the servicing 
of commercial agreements, to support tournament delivery and to 
facilitate badminton’s continued growth and development across 189 
Member Associations.

BWF continued to build strong commercial partnerships linked to 
international tournaments and the media and commercial rights that 
extend from these important windows into our sport. Energy giant, 
Total Oil continued to be a key partner and title sponsor for BWF 
Major Events throughout 2017 and we have extended this important 
relationship for Major Events to 2021. 

We continued to work closely with IMG Media to deliver the broadcast 
and media rights of the final year of the cycle of the BWF World 
Superseries.

BWF started integrating Infront Sports & Media into the badminton 
family. As announced in September 2016, Infront – and its parent 
company, Wanda, were chosen to manage BWF’s media and 
sponsorship rights for the long-term future. Infront’s role, in relation 
to sponsorship servicing for Major Events, commenced in 2017 
and the full partnership took effect from January 2018. However, in 
anticipation of assuming their substantive responsibilities in 2018, 
Infront co-brokered an extensive partnership agreement which 
saw HSBC become BWF’s Principal Global Partner for 2018 - 2021, 
including title sponsor of the remodelled HSBC BWF World Tour and 
the HSBC BWF World Tour Finals.

In March 2017, we announced Yonex as our Official Equipment 
Partner for BWF Major Events in a five-year agreement which started 

with the TOTAL BWF Sudirman Cup 2017 in Gold Coast last May and 
the TOTAL BWF World Championships 2017 in Glasgow last August.

Work also continued on enhancing BWF’s network of digital platforms 
to service the audience-specific demands of our global community, 
with websites being launched throughout the year in tandem with 
BWF Major Events.

On other areas, 2017 was a year of continued capacity building. The 
Integrity Unit in particular had additional resources added with new 
technology and a new staff member, external expertise integrated 
around investigations and more broadly, we revamped regulations 
around ethics and judicial processes which allowed for independent 
judges to be used to judge ethics and corruption cases.  

BWF also continued to enhance the area of development with 
additional financial resources to build the capacity of our Continental 
Confederations to deliver more and better programmes regionally in 
partnerships with the membership.

2017 HIGHLIGHTS

PERSONNEL AND STAFF STRUCTURE

The BWF office recruited more staff in 2017 to continue to meet the 
demands of BWF’s increasing number of commercial commitments, 
to service these through a greater number of tournaments, to enhance 
development initiatives and to improve services to a wide range of 
stakeholders, especially the BWF membership.

New staff joined our team in KL filling the positions of Legal Manager, 
Development Manager, Digital Marketing Manager, Development 
Officer, Events Officer and Integrity Officer. Recruitment is ongoing for 
another Tournament Series Manager, and an Intelligence Officer and 
an Administration Officer.

The BWF will continue to expand the number of staff to meet 
increasing demands of our work. This includes 1) the servicing of 

SECRETARY 
GENERAL’S 
REPORT
THOMAS LUND – 
SECRETARY GENERAL
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our commercial partnerships especially around the HSBC BWF 
World Tour and BWF Major Events, 2) to service better BWF’s global 
membership, 3) to support development initiatives and the work of 
the Continental Confederations on development programmes 4) and 
to manage new initiatives for the BWF digital strategy towards Tokyo 
2020 and beyond to 2024.

NEW BWF HEADQUARTERS

The BWF relocated to Naza Tower in KL City Centre (KLCC) at the end 
of June 2017. This is a significant upgrade to the two other premises 
we have occupied since moving to KL from Cheltenham in 2005.

Our spacious new headquarters lives up to the status of an 
International Federation of an Olympic and Paralympic sport and it 
will meet the future requirements of BWF’s operations.

In August, representatives from the Malaysian Government, sports 
officials from the Badminton Association of Malaysia, Badminton 
Asia and other sports bodies and other guests joined us at a reception 
to toast the opening of the new office. We were pleased to welcome 
them, particularly those organisations with whom we had worked 
closely with since BWF moved to Malaysia in 2005.

TOKYO 2020 – OLYMPIC & 
PARALYMPIC GAMES
 
The preparations for the Tokyo 2020 Olympic and Paralympic Games 
is going very well and there is good forward planning by the hosts 
and open communication between the BWF and the Organising 
Committees.
 
A site visit was conducted at the end of January 2018 and this involved 
focuses for both the Olympic and Paralympic Games. We are satisfied 
with the progress to date and the level of planning and thought into the 
venues for badminton / para-badminton, the sports delivery plan and 
the logistics around venue operations, transport and accommodation.
 
In mid 2017, the International Paralympic Committee (IPC) announced 
the medal events for sports for the Tokyo 2020 Paralympic Games and 
badminton was allocated 90 athlete places across fourteen medal 
events. This was a significant achievement given that new sports for 
Rio 2016 Paralympic Games had 60 athletes allocated to their debut 
event. Following the announcement, the task for the BWF was then to 
submit the qualification regulations by the end of 2017 for approval 
by the IPC. As this report goes to print, the IPC has yet to release the 
Qualification Guidelines for sports for Tokyo 2020, however this will be 
published soon. It is safe to say that there are significant complexities 
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in qualification for the Tokyo 2020 Paralympic Games, compared to 
badminton qualification for the Olympic Games. It was important for 
BWF to have a system that was fair, transparent and guarantee that 
all 90 athlete places are utalised at badminton’s debut event in 2020.
 
 

INTEGRITY OF BADMINTON
 
In 2017, BWF continued to build the capacity of the Integrity Unit 
which was established at the end of 2014. The Integrity Unit is an 
operational unit within the BWF office in Kuala Lumpur and it focuses 
on sport integrity which is about keeping our sport free of corruption 
– free from doping, free from match manipulation or match fixing and 
keeping our sport from other forms of corrupt behaviour.
.
On a day-to-day basis, the Integrity Unit manages the anti-doping 
and anti-match fixing programmes and all the elements that relate 
to education, monitoring of players and matches and investigations. 
Every athlete has the right to compete in clean and fair sport. Doping, 
match fixing, illegal betting and other forms of corruption are threats 
to the integrity of badminton so the Integrity Unit is our way of 
ensuring programmes are aligned to prevent this through education, 
monitoring of players and matches and investigations.
 
In 2017, the BWF achieved the following:
 
• Conducted a wide range of “i am badminton” integrity activations 

at events throughout 2017.

• Recruited an Integrity Officer and is currently recruiting an 
Intelligence Analyst to build the HR capacity of the unit.

• Ensured the Unit has access to other expertise to support their 
activities. This included utalising the services of a professional 
investigator and having access to internal legal advice through the 
BWF Legal Manager who started with the BWF in February 2017.

• Invested in technology to assist in investigations including in 
database software to systematically record any information 
related to potential match-fixing or doping.   

This is a long term investment. Like all International Federations on 
the Olympic Programme, we have been closely involved in monitoring 
alleged doping in badminton since 2000. Since 2012, BWF has had a 
renewed focus on the possible manipulation of match outcomes and 
ensuring the badminton is both “clean” and “honest”.

DIGITAL PLATFORMS / DIGITAL STRATEGY

BWF continued the development of its digital platforms with more 
tailored websites coming online to service diverse clientele. 

Bespoke websites were produced for the TOTAL BWF Sudirman 
Cup 2017 in Gold Coast (www.bwfsudirmancup.com), and the 
TOTAL BWF World Championships 2017 in Glasgow (www.
bwfworldchampionships.com) – both offering extensive journeys 
into their respective tournaments, including the history of the events, 
information on past winners, scores and news on past and current 
championships.

Another change to this landscape came at the end of the year as the 
BWF World Superseries site (www.bwfworldsuperseries.com) was 
replaced by the BWF World Tour site (www.bwfworldtour.com) to 
reflect the new era in badminton with the start of the HSBC BWF World 
Tour. And more recently in March 2018, a Thomas & Uber Cup website 
was launched in preparation for the TOTAL BWF Thomas & Uber Cup 
Finals in Bangkok in May 2018 (www.bwfthomasubercups.com).

Meanwhile, the BWF continues to maintain a full suite of websites, 
servicing different aspects of our work. The Fan Site (www.
bwfbadminton.com) and Chinese Fan Site (www.bwfbadminton.cn), 
Olympic Badminton (www.olympics.bwfbadminton.com), Corporate 

Site (www.bwfcorporate.com),  Education Site (www.bwfeducation.
com), and Shuttle Time Site (www.bwfshuttletime.com). 

MEETINGS

The BWF Secretariat again provided day-to-day servicing of the BWF 
Council, Executive Board and the Committees and Commissions. 
BWF staff also planned and prepared for the 2017 Annual General 
Meeting (including the BWF Council elections) and Member’s Forum. 
Last year, those key meetings were held in Gold Coast, Australia, in 
conjunction with the TOTAL BWF Sudirman Cup 2017.

The BWF Council met on four occasions in 2017:
 
• 17-19 March: Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia

• 19-22 May: Gold Coast, Australia

• 21-26 August: Glasgow, Scotland

• 12-17 November: Montego Bay, Jamaica

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The past year was another fruitful one for BWF marked by notable 
progress across the spectrum of badminton – again just reward for 
the diligence and hard work by our staff, Continental Confederations, 
Members, corporate partners, tournament hosts and countless friends 
of badminton who contributed and volunteered throughout 2017.

At the pinnacle of our organisational structure, we have been astutely 
led by the BWF Council whose members chair various committees 
and commissions. My appreciation goes to the President and Council 
for their visionary leadership and guidance. In addition, I wish to thank 
my committed and talented colleagues for their hard work and tireless 
efforts in making sure that badminton continues to be showcased at 
an optimal level globally.

My sincere appreciation is also extended to our membership, corporate 
partners, tournament hosts and all others who have contributed to 
BWF’s and badminton’s success in 2017.

THOMAS LUND
SECRETARY GENERAL
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INTRODUCTION

ENTERTAINMENT is one of the four Strategic Priorities in the BWF 
Strategic Plan 2016 – 2020. BWF, together with the hosts of BWF 
Major Events and HSBC BWF World Tour hosts, are investing in 
up-grading the quality and consistency of sports presentation and 
television production of top tier tournaments.

‘Badminton as Entertainment’ as one of four primary focuses is about 
capturing inspirational performances through events, communicating 
this through high-end television production and global broadcast, 
showcasing athletes as stars and engaging a global fan base through 
a range of digital platforms.

The next few pages of this annual report describe how BWF is planning 
to further enhance the quality and consistency of how we present the 
sport to a global fan base. The following describes the innovations 
the BWF Council have, and will be focusing on, to ensure badminton 
continues to make progress in an increasingly competitive sports 
market globally. The proposal to this years Annual General Meeting on 
innovating the sport is part of the enhancements for the future.  

The contents of this section of the annual report are:

1. Executive Summary – the overview

2. Enhancing Badminton’s Future – Introduction

3. BWF Council’s Proposal

4. Upgrading our Sport – Key Considerations / Goals

5. Enhancing the Scoring System

6. Challenges of the Current Scoring System

7. Proposed Solutions / Proposed Enhanced Scoring System

8. Key Achievements and Activities – Implementation

9. Focusing on our Players

10. Research and Statistics on the Proposed Scoring System

ENHANCING 
BADMINTON’S 
FUTURE
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ENHANCING BADMINTON’S FUTURE
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

           

INTRODUCTION

The Badminton World Federation is 
determined to be innovative, cutting-edge 
and forward thinking in its efforts to 
further modernise and develop badminton 
and to continue building on our sport’s 
success and significant growth in the past 
eight years. 

The BWF is proposing a package of 
progressive enhancements to galvanise 
badminton and increase its 
competitiveness in a sports-entertainment 
world which is continually innovating 
ways to present and promote elite sports 
events.

BWF wants to attract a more extensive 
global fan-base to badminton with a 
particular focus on youth. We want to 
inspire fans with thrilling matches, 
world-class sports presentation and 
engage them, showcasing our superstars 
as sports personalities. It is our intention 
to implement substantial innovations by 
2020 – and to continue evolving 
badminton into the future. 

Ultimately, our goal is to enhance the 
position of badminton in an increasingly 
saturated global sports market; solidifying 
it as a premier sports-entertainment 
product.

This journey has been underway for some 
time, and the recent launch of the HSBC 
BWF World Tour is another platform to roll 
out more of these upgrades and 
enhancements.

TRANSFORMING ELITE BADMINTON

The BWF Council has endorsed a package 
of initiatives which aims to build 
significant value for badminton. Some of 
these have already been introduced and 
others are on the way. Our main focus is to 
optimise the presentation of badminton at 
the highest level. BWF has a strategic and 
360-degree approach that covers these 
elements:

•
   
•   

•  

•   

•  

•  

Changing the scoring system with specific 
focus on elite international tournaments is 
an essential part of this strategic, 
multi-dimensional plan to innovate our 
competition rules. 

RATIONALE FOR CHANGE:

• 

•  

Enriching fan experience – attracting 
new fans.
Raising the profiles of our stars and 
emerging talent.
Increasing commercial value of our 
sport.
Strengthening our global recognition as 
a cutting-edge sport.
Enhancing the quality of our broadcast 
product. 
Innovating our competition rules.  

The length of matches at elite level has 
increased dramatically over the last two 
Olympic cycles.
Unexciting phases in a range of 
matches.

• 

• 

KEY OBJECTIVES:

•

•  
•  

 
KEY CONSIDERATIONS AT THE BWF AGM:

The BWF Council will formally propose 
changes to the technical regulations to 
address the following points:

•  

•  

•  

The proposal and its rationale are 

explained in detail in the following pages. 

Greater physical and mental stress for 
the top players.
Need to further enhance rally-point 
scoring.  

Building suspense quicker – more 
intensity in matches.
Increasing the excitement in matches.
Shortening the length of matches (to 
optimise television broadcasts).

A new and enhanced scoring system to 
increase the excitement of the sport at 
the top level and to shorten the length of 
matches – based on best of 5 games to 
11.
A reduction in on-court coaching – 
introducing time-out options for players.
A service-law change with a fixed height 
for serves to improve the quality and 
consistency of service judging.

BWF ANNUAL REPORT 2017 13
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ENHANCING 
BADMINTON’S FUTURE
INTRODUCTION
This year is a landmark one for the Badminton World Federation as we have boldly embarked not only on a new tournament cycle but, more 
significantly, a new tournament structure which will be pivotal to our sport’s ongoing evolution and success. We have also welcomed new partnerships 
– and launched the HSBC BWF World Tour – which will bolster our drive to take badminton to an even higher level.

In the fast-paced, cutting-edge world of sport, change and innovation are vital constants to succeed in an increasingly saturated marketplace and 
it is important to increase the excitement and engagement in our sport to grow our fan base globally. Key statistics have shown that our collective 
hard work has been paying off. Badminton has been on the rise on important fronts:

STRATEGIC FOCUS
‘Badminton as Entertainment’ is a primary focus in the BWF Strategic Plan 
2016-2020 approved by Council in October 2015. This is about capturing 
inspirational performances through events, communicating this through 
high-end television production and global broadcast, showcasing athletes 
as stars and engaging a global fan base through a range of digital 
platforms. BWF has already started to transform our sport in various 
ways, including the improvements in the quality of television production; 
the introduction of Hawk-Eye and speed-gun technology; usage of in-
venue jumbotrons for replays and other displays; showing on-court 
projections and animations; and hiring professional commentators and 
in-venue announcers.

These are accomplishments of which we should all be justly proud but 
this is not the summit and we cannot afford to be complacent now. 
The time is right to do more; to go further; to be bolder – and not to 
wait until decisive shifts and advances in our marketplace trigger our 
response. We must be proactive if we want to maintain badminton’s 
steady upward trajectory – and be a leading sport progressing to the 
top of the sporting landscape. 

Most importantly, we must remain relevant to youth to attract their 
attention and gain their life-long loyalty.
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BWF COUNCIL’S PROPOSAL
In keeping with the Vision embraced in the BWF Strategic Plan 2016-
2020 – Making badminton a leading global sport accessible to all 
- giving every child a chance to play for life – and deeply inspired 
by the key words of our Mission, the BWF Council wishes to propose 
a suite of initiatives to further elevate badminton within the realm 
of ‘sportainment’ – the complex and savvy blend of sports and 
entertainment that is the blueprint for success within the sport-event 
industry today.

The proposed improvements are designed to elevate the sports 
presentation of BWF events and badminton in general. They include in 
particular an enhanced scoring system, but the progressive strategy 
encompasses other initiatives such as reduced on-court coaching, 
the implementation of the Experimental Service Law (Fixed Height), 
already being tested from March 2018, and a range of enhancements 
regarding the general presentation and promotion of the sport 
we all treasure. These improvements are closely aligned to BWF’s 
commitment to entertainment, excellence and innovation within our 
badminton product.

BWF Council’s overall strategy includes further enhancements to the 
presentation of our sport which are already part of BWF’s operational 

plans. In summation, BWF is focusing on: 
1. Innovating competition rules, including changes to the scoring 

system, on-court coaching and service-height regulations.

2. Enriching fan experience – which includes a range of 
communication strategies and initiatives, such as building a 
broader digital presence for BWF.

3. Raising the profile of our stars and players – which includes 
promotion and education initiatives around our star players.

4. Increasing the commercial value of our sport – which has already 
resulted in a new agency agreement and new sponsorship 
partners for our tournaments.

5. Strengthening our profile as an innovative and cutting-edge sport 
– the progressive initiatives in the strategic approach will fulfil this 
objective.

6. Enhancing our broadcasting product – already part of the 
partnership with our agency, Infront Sports & Media; with the 
focus on enhancing our broadcast product.
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UPGRADING OUR SPORT 
- KEY ELEMENTS
KEY CONSIDERATIONS
Here are some important factors at the forefront of the BWF Council’s considerations.

Mission to attract new fans while not compromising the integrity and principles of badminton.
Our new commercial partners – including agencies, broadcasters and key sponsors which are integral to the top flight of our sport – expect BWF to 
innovate more, thereby ensuring our badminton product remains competitive, relevant and popular – and that it continues to grow globally.
Other racket sports – and sports in general – are experimenting with their presentation, scoring formats and match/event lengths to optimise fan 
and player/athlete experience. 

GOALS
Increase the excitement, engagement and innovation of badminton.
Enhance badminton’s position in an increasingly saturated global sports market.

These changes focus on badminton’s elite level and international tournaments and the presentation of our star players to our fans through television, 
digital channels and various media globally. The BWF Council, however, accepts that Member Associations can decide if and how to implement the 
proposed changes in their national contexts to accommodate, in best way possible, the different levels of recreational and competitive players being 
part of the athletes’ pathway to world-class level.

The BWF Council, led by President Poul-Erik Høyer, is convinced that these are among the enhancements that can propel badminton to a new and 
even more exciting horizon. It is the necessary way forward in the sporting environment in which we operate.
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ENHANCING THE SCORING SYSTEM
The proposed changes to the scoring system are an essential part of the overall strategic goal to optimise the presentation of badminton at the 
highest level. 

The rally-point system has clearly been successful but the BWF Council feels further enhancement of badminton is vital at this stage if our sport is 
to maintain and indeed grow its share of the sports-entertainment landscape.

The key objectives include:

Building suspense quicker – more intensity in matches (see second diagram below).
Increasing the excitement in matches.
Shortening the length of matches (to reduce physical impact on players and optimise television broadcasts).

One of the pillars of this evolutionary package of innovations is therefore a proposal to change from current scoring system of three games to 21 
points to five games to 11 points. 

First proposed in 2014, this plan is the culmination of almost four years of discussion and testing, with BWF having invested in detailed statistical 
analysis and modelling of potential scoring systems. 

Admittedly, there have been mixed reactions to the testing and concerns have been raised about players having to adapt to too many changes at the 
same time. However, the BWF is confident our player community is flexible enough to adapt suitably within this Olympic cycle, thus giving players 
adequate time to get accustomed to a new scoring system and other enhancements before the Tokyo 2020 Qualification Period begins in 2019. 
Furthermore, the new scoring system will reduce the physical impact on players, protecting the health of our athletes and making it possible for them 
to compete in more tournaments.
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CURRENT SCORING SYSTEM - CHALLENGES
1. The length of matches at elite level has dramatically increased over the last two Olympic cycles (see diagram below). which has resulted in 

periods of play without excitement in matches.

2. Match length at the top level of the sport has been significantly influenced by the increase in breaks between points, which has led to the 
shuttlecock actually being in play for a lower percentage of the total match length (see diagram below).

3. Scheduling has therefore become more complex with very long hours of play at the top of the sport.

4. Increased match lengths, reduced draw sizes (more matches between closely ranked players) and greater scientific input into player preparation, 
has led to greater physical and mental stress for the elite players which risks increasing player injuries and withdrawals.

NOTES:

• Percentage calculated based on increase/decrease of first event/period.

• 2012-16 sample taken from Men’s Singles only
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PROPOSED SOLUTIONS
1. Decrease the length of games and matches by adapting the 

scoring system.

2. Reduce time being taken between points.

3. Reduce warm-up time; racket testing.*

4. Reduce on-court coaching.*

* Being considered for implementation by BWF Council.

PROPOSED ENHANCED SCORING SYSTEM
The proposed enhanced scoring system therefore centres on the below structure:

More detailed information around the proposals to the BWF membership will be provided in the materials to be sent to the membership on Friday 30 
March, 2018, in preparation for the BWF Annual General Meeting in Bangkok on Saturday 19 May, 2018. 

The key areas for the BWF membership to consider will be:

1. A new and enhanced scoring system to increase the excitement of the sport at the top level and to shorten the length of matches.

2. A reduction in on-court coaching. 

3. A service-law change with a fixed height for serves to improve the quality and consistency of service judging.
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KEY ACHIEVEMENTS 
AND ACTIVITIES

FOR THE BETTERMENT OF BADMINTON
For any sport to remain at the pinnacle of the sports-entertainment industry, it must undertake periodic self-evaluation and innovation to continue 
attracting and exciting fans – fans who have countless, amazing choices in a competitive global sports market.
 
In the Badminton World Federation, we have done so and, in recent years, we have celebrated milestone after milestone in our federation’s history. 
We have been applauded for landmark achievements and we have continued to define badminton for generations to come.
 
Now, it’s time for us to be even bolder; not just the BWF Council but all of us – all 189 Member Associations. This must be a collective journey on 
which we embark, to embrace change and to confidently chart badminton’s course to the forefront of global sport.
 
We must seek unprecedented heights across the spectrum of our sport.
 
All of us in the BWF Council believe that is our destiny – and we must pursue it vigorously.
 
It is now up to you – our members.
 
We invite you to absorb the detailed information which has been presented and we look forward to your robust support in our quest to do what is 
best for badminton.

STRATEGIC GOAL: Underlining BWF’s athletes-focused strategy, this infographic illustrates the potentially 
positive impacts which specific enhancements could have for our athletes and badminton’s overall development. 
It represents BWF’s vision for an optimal future and what BWF thinks can be achieved with these proposals.
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STRATEGIC GOAL: Underlining BWF’s athletes-focused strategy, this infographic illustrates the potentially 
positive impacts which specific enhancements could have for our athletes and badminton’s overall development. 
It represents BWF’s vision for an optimal future and what BWF thinks can be achieved with these proposals.
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INTRODUCTION

To complement the on-court testing of competition play of the proposed scoring system, the BWF invested in a research project that looked at 
extensive and robust statistical analysis and comparison of the existing scoring system against other potential systems, including 5x11 and 3x15, 
with various setting and game ending variations. 

The baseline statistical model used for these simulations was created by researchers using all the historical Tournamentsoftware database of 
international results. Substantial testing was conducted to check the accuracy of the model. The model was also used to test the variations of results 
from each individual discipline.

The test model is somewhat similar to the systems used by betting companies to predict results and the winners of each point, however this 
modelling was created in cooperation with BWF and our data suppliers which meant we got access to our complete historical database of matches, 
player rankings and point progression information.

The model is carried out at the rally level where each player (team) has a constant probability of winning each rally. Rally outcomes are assumed 
independent of one another and the model has been validated by analysis against the trial events where the scoring system was tested in on-court 
competition conditions.

This research was presented to Council and added significant value to the competition testing of the various scoring systems.

KEY FINDINGS
The key findings of the research are as follows:

1. Match-winning probabilities in the trial system are practically identical to those in the current system

• Match-winning probabilities for the trial scoring system (5×11) only differ at most by about 3 percentage points, only slightly favoring the 
weaker player.

2. In the trial system, game-winning probabilities are fairly high for weaker players even outside the range where match outcomes are almost 
certain.

• Game-winning probabilities are affected more severely due to the shorter games in the trial system, but at match level this is countered by 
the increased number of games.

• Due to the shorter and increased number of games in the trial scoring system, a weaker player has a good chance of winning at least one 
game.

3. The length of the match is shorter under the trial system, particularly in uneven matches.

• The longest matches under the trial system (5 games) are about average length of that in the current scoring system.

• In uneven matches, games typically end quicker, and often end in three games, thus limiting the number of points to the weaker player. Under 
the current system the weaker player is likely to score more points simply due to the longer games

4. Setting, as in the current system favors the stronger player but as with the current system when the players are equal in strength (level), setting 
has no influence.

5. In the current system, when the first player reaches 11 points, he will have more than 75% chance of winning the game even with players of equal 
strengths hence already making the outcome of the game quite certain statistically.

• This is even more pronounced when players are unevenly matched, where the stronger player is likely to be even more ahead giving him 
about a 90% chance of winning the game.

• When reaching the endgame this effect becomes stronger under the  current system, but is much less likely under the trial system.

• Thus, even midway through the game under the current system there is a good chance that the outcome is already determined.

6. Under the proposed system it is quite likely for the losing player to win a game even if he eventually does not win the match. 
 
This affects the length of the match in different ways according to the scoring system:

• The current system has longer games, but lower probability of extending into three games, particularly in uneven matches.

• The trial system has shorter games, but higher probability of extending into more than three games.

SCORING CURRENT 3x21 PROPOSED 5x11

NUMBER OF GAMES 2 Games 3 Games 3 Games 4 Games 5 Games 

AVG % 61% 39% 33% 37% 30%

SCORING SYSTEM RESEARCH 
AND STATISTICAL ANALYSIS
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NUMBER OF RALLIES IN THE MATCH

7. To compare the two systems we can overlay the distributions. This shows how the trial system is markedly shorter than the current would be 
under similar conditions.

8. The probability of a 4 game match in the trial system is about as likely as a 2 game match in the current, and

9. A 5 games match is shorter than a 3 games match in the current.

CURRENT SYSTEM LENGTH OF GAME (RALLIES OR PROBABILITY OF GAMES)

RELATIVE STRENGTHS 2 Games 3 Games Expected (average) Upper 75% Upper 95% 

EVEN PLAYERS 50% 50% 93.2 112 120

FAVORITE 58.1% 41.9% 88.9 109 119

STRONG FAVORITE 75.3% 24.7% 79.6 87 114

TRIAL SYSTEM LENGTH OF GAME (RALLIES OR PROBABILITY OF GAMES)

RELATIVE STRENGTHS 3 Games 4 Games 5 Games Expected (average) Upper 75% Upper 95% 

EVEN PLAYERS 25% 37.5% 37.5% 75.5 90 97

FAVORITE 31.3% 37.2% 31.5% 72.7 87 96

STRONG FAVORITE 47.2% 34.2% 18.5% 65.9 75 94

SCORING CURRENT 3x21 PROPOSED 5x11

Average number of rallies in match 88.5 72.7

 

CONCLUSION

From the statistical analysis and the trialling under competition conditions, there are a few conclusions that can be drawn:
 
1. Changing the scoring system will not change those who usually win. The same talented players who have done well in the current scoring 

system will be the same players who will do well in a new scoring system and continue to reach the podium.

2. The matches will generally be shorter and this is seen as a positive outcome for broadcast.

3. More setting opportunities, and therefore greater opportunities for peaks, pressure and excitement. Increasing the entertainment value.
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EVENTS COMMITTEE 

HIGHLIGHTS 2017

• The TOTAL BWF Sudirman Cup was held for the first time ever 
in Australia and the Oceania region in the city of Gold Coast and 
witnessed a remarkable victory by Korea over long term title 
holder, China.

• The TOTAL BWF World Championships returned to Glasgow, 
Scotland for the first time since 1997 and featured some epic 
finals including popular first time victories for Viktor Axelsen of 
Denmark and Nozomi Okuhara of Japan.

• The four year partnership which started in 2014 with Dubai came 
to a fitting end with a wonderful Dubai World Superseries Finals 
in the Hamdan Sport Complex, a wonderful climax to the MetLife 
BWF World Superseries.

• Record individual entry with 64 Member Associations represented 
in the BLIBLI.COM YONEX-SUNRISE BWF World Junior 
Championships in Yogjakarta, Indonesia. A total of 44 Member 
Associations took part in the team competition. 

• Publication of the revamped and revised General Competition 
Regulations (GCR) and tournament regulations including a new 
junior GCR.

• Good progress in the recruitment of a semi-professional technical 
officials workforce including a 360 degree appraisal process and 
progress in the creation of technical officials education materials.

COMMITTEE SCOPE OF WORK

The Events Committee has a key part to play within BWF regarding 
regulating and promoting the sport at the international level. This 
includes:
• Sanctioning of international competitions and good management 

of the international badminton calendar.

• Regular reviews and implementation of the laws and competition 
regulations to make sure they are accurate and fit for purpose for 
a fast changing and commercially growing international sport. 

• Showcasing of the sport through major event delivery including 
World Championships, Thomas & Uber Cups, Sudirman Cup and 
World Junior and World Senior Championships. 

• Working with BWF’s partners, including event hosts, sponsors 
and commercial and media partners to fulfill a wide range of 
tournament related commercial and media agreements whose 
aim is to deliver world class tournaments and grow the fanbase 
even further from the current 450 million global audience.

• Daily co-ordination of technical officials appointed to international 
competition and their training and education.

• Key partner in the delivery, along with the games hosts, of the 
badminton competition at the Olympic Games and support of 
many other multi-sport games and Continental Confederation 
competitions.

2017 IN REVIEW

TOTAL BWF SUDIRMAN CUP
GOLD COAST, AUSTRALIA
21–28 MAY 2017

The TOTAL BWF Sudirman Cup 2017 looked striking, enjoyed some 
excellent competition including surprise winners Korea and it was a 
very competently delivered event.  

The Gold Coast Sports & Leisure Centre has some great strengths as 
a venue including a high-quality arena screens and excellent wooden 
floor and the hosts implemented an effective drape and branding 
scheme to hide the venues white walls and large glass windows.

The Championships featured a successful commercial 
implementation for BWF’s partner’s title and equipment sponsors 
TOTAL and YONEX and fulfilled the BWF’s strategic objectives of 
showcasing and promoting badminton to an increasing worldwide 
television audience.  The television production was of a high standard, 
from the start of the tournament on two courts and included the use 

EVENTS
PETER TARCALA - CHAIR
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of an ultra slo motion camera.  In addition, Hawkeye delivered a speed 
measurement system (speed gun) to give smash speeds to television.

Strong features of the Sudirman Cup 2017 included:

• First time BWF Sudirman Cup held in Australia and in Oceania 
region.

• The brand new venue, the Gold Coast Sports & Leisure Centre was 
given a good test prior to hosting the badminton competition at 
the Gold Coast 2018 Commonwealth Games.

• Excellent series of promotional activities with players promoting 
Gold Coast and Queensland as tourist destinations.

• Filmed and available to broadcasters in 16:9 HD.

• Court specific lighting rig.

• Use of event concept to create look and feel identity.

• Successful implementation of BWF commercial partnerships.

• Friendly and helpful volunteers.

TOTAL BWF WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS
GLASGOW, SCOTLAND
21–27 AUGUST 2017

This was the second time Glasgow hosted the World Championships 
(previously in 1997) but first for the Emirates Arena which was opened 
shortly before the 2014 Commonwealth Games where it hosted the 
badminton competition and cycling (in the velodrome side of the 
Arena). The TOTAL BWF World Championships 2017 was the first 
World Championships in partnership with BWF’s new commercial 
agency Infront and the second with title sponsor TOTAL. YONEX 
returned to being a BWF major events partner as court equipment 
sponsor.

The Championships witnessed two memorable marathon matches to 
start the finals day programme with an 83 minute women’s doubles 
final and and 110 minute women’s singles final.  The players in both 
matches took the spectators breath away with the audacity and sheer 
high quality of their play.  Nozomi Okuhara became only the second 
world champion for Japan and the first since the inaugural world 
championships in 1977.
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The Championships were very effectively run, in particular enjoying 
a good local deputy referee to support the BWF referees and good 
organization of the line judge team, arena maintenance squad and 
good athlete and media services. Five courts were used for the World 
Championships for the first time since 2007 and competition hall 
practice was made available for three days for the first time.

BWF and the hosts delivered the implementation required for BWF’s 
commercial partners; title sponsors TOTAL, court equipment sponsors 
YONEX, and new partner 12BET. 

The Championships fulfilled the BWF strategic objectives of 
showcasing and promoting badminton to an ever-increasing 
worldwide television audience with good spectator attendances 
and high-quality television production.  The television production in 
particular also featured the use of Ultra Slo Mo cameras building on 
this addition implemented at the World Championships in 2014.

Strong features of the TOTAL BWF World Championships 2017 
included:

• Filmed and available to broadcasters in 16:9 HD.

• Good quality television production including use of Ultra Slo Mo 
cameras.

• High quality sports presentation utilizing theatrical lighting, arena 
screens and music and good use of local cultural indicators such 
as pipes and drums to escort the players to the medal ceremonies.

• Good player services and good transport services.

• Successful implementation of commercial partnerships.

• Smooth presentation of matches onto court in multi court stages 
integrated with television production.

• Good ticket sales and spectator attendance (total attendance 
21,788).

Overall a very successful Championships with only a few challenges 
including the additional branding opportunities and arrangements 
with the BBC.  

BLIBLI.COM YONEX-SUNRISE BWF 
WORLD JUNIOR CHAMPIONSHIPS
YOGJAKARTA, INDONESIA
9 – 22 OCTOBER 2017

The BWF World Junior Championships for the Suhandinata Cup 2017 
(team event) and the Eye- Level Cups 2017 returned to Indonesia after 
25 years.

A total of 44 Member Associations representing all five continental 
confederations entered the Suhandinata Cup which was a predicted 
decrease from Bilbao 2016. However Yogjakarta 2017 set a new 
record for the individual’s entry with 64 Member Associations taking 
part. BWF invested in junior international badminton supporting 
participation at the Championships by making available grants 
totaling USD $149,000 to 37 teams. 

A two day development coaching clinic was organised by BWF 
for players who were available after the second round onwards in 

the individual events. Coaches included famous past players Fung 
Permadi, Yap Kim Hock and Sigit Budiarto and approximately 80 
players from 16 Member Associations took part in the programme.  
A trial of the 110 point team relay scoring experimental system was 
carried out during the team championships and players from China, 
Malaysia, Korea, Thailand, Belgium, Germany, France, Chinese Taipei 
USA and India took part in the experiment. BWF technical officials 
assisted in the experiment. 

A cultural education programme was organized for the players and 
officials on 14 October 2017 from 2.00pm – 9.30pm.  A well organised 
tour was held in the historic setting of Prambanan and it was a great 
experience for all participants. 

BWF organized an iZone as part of the “i am badminton” integrity 
awareness campaign with signature board, selfie zone and WADA 
and BWF questionnaires. This was a good addition to the education 
programme for players, coaches and team managers.

There was live television broadcast for the team and individual 
semifinals and finals days and this was aired domestically.  
Arrangements were also made for daily live streaming on four courts 
for Team and Individual events from Day 1–15. In the finals, nine 
cameras were used for both team and individual championships.

China dominated the mixed team events and ultimately won the 
Suhandinata Cup defeating Malaysia in the finals 4-1. In the individual 
events the medals were shared by Indonesia (women’s singles, mixed 
doubles), Thailand (men’s singles), Korea (women’s doubles) and 
Japan (men’s doubles). 

PLAYERS SCHOLARSHIP FUND 

A sum of US$36,000 was given away as scholarship awards to the 
winners of the Eye-Level Cups. This prize fund was contributed by 
the BWF past President, Dr. Kang Young Joong under the Daekyo 
Corporation. 

MANORAMA BWF WORLD SENIOR 
CHAMPIONSHIPS, COCHIN, INDIA
11 – 17 SEPTEMBER 2018 

The MANORAMA BWF World Senior Championships took place in 
Cochin, India, and received positive feedback from the players.  There 
were 663 players, 847 entries in 40 events and the Championships 
resulted in a wide medal spread.

METLIFE BWF WORLD SUPERSERIES

The final year of the MetLife BWF World Superseries further 
demonstrated its huge strengths as a showcase of top quality 
international badminton for a huge and growing global badminton 
audience. Once again the Dubai World Superseries Finals 2017 
provided a tremendous player experience and top quality badminton 
competition and television production. The hosts can take great pride 
in delivering over the four years in Dubai, a finals to the standard that 
BWF and the players aspired to have. In addition prize money across 
the 12 tournament Series totaled $6,725,000 to which can be added 
the $1,000,000 prize fund for the Finals in Dubai in December 2017.
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BWF INTERNATIONAL CIRCUIT

In the tournament levels below the MetLife BWF World Superseries 
there were 13 BWF Grand Prix Gold tournaments with a total prize 
fund of $1,670,000. Five Grand Prix tournaments with a combined 
prize fund of $325,000 and at Level 4 (continental tournament circuits) 
there were 83 level four tournaments totaling $868,000.

NEW GCR ‘HANDBOOK’

The Events Committee and Events Department completed a full review 
and published the revised the General Competition Regulations (GCR) 
and tournament regulations as part of a revamped BWF Statutes. All 
rules and regulations of the BWF are published on the website in five 
chapters. This reorganisation of the Statutes will be delivered in a 
mobile app format in mid-2018.

COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Peter Tarcala – Chair
Tang Jiu Hong – Deputy Chair
Geraldine Brown
Ng Yoke Weng
Koen Ridder
Vishu Tolan
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BWF continued to implement the Strategic Development Plan for 
Technical Officials in 2017 with its main focus on increased quality 
and quantity of technical officials in the system at an international 
level. This programme was initiated in 2016.

Key activities and programmes included the following:

• Continued content development of educational resources for 
referees and umpires at the Level 1 stage and developed a line 
judge training resource. These free resources are to be launched in 
2018 and will be available for all of our Members and Continental 
Confederations.

• The application and evaluation process of candidates for the semi-
professional referee team continued in 2017. Final selections and 
implementation is planned for 2018. 

• The application and evaluation process for semi-professional 
umpires will start in 2018 with selection in 2019 and 
implementation in 2020.

• The successful implementation of a new 360 degree appraisal 
programme for referees began in 2017 and will continue into 
2018.

• The continued robust umpire appraisal programme with a move 
to a 360 degree programme to begin in 2018.

• A revised version of the Vocabulary and Instructions for Technical 
Officials (ITTO) implemented in 2015. 

There were two training activities centrally organised by the BWF 
Technical Officials Commission in 2017:

1. In March, in Birmingham, England, BWF organised a workshop for 
nominated continental level referees for assessment for the BWF 
Accredited level.

2. In May, in Gold Coast, Australia, BWF hosted a workshop for the 
members of the Umpire Assessment Panel. 

2017 IN REVIEW

The years was a busy one with the main focus on assessment, 
training and development – both practical and theoretical – to 
enhance the quality of skills and knowledge on the technical officials 
team internationally.

REFEREE ASSESSMENT

Referee Assessors completed appraisals at the following tournaments:

• PRINCESS SIRIVANNAVARI Thailand Masters, Bangkok, THA

• YONEX All England Open, Birmingham, ENG

• YONEX Swiss Open, Basel, SUI

• CELCOM AXIATA Malaysia Open, Kuching, MAS

• TOTAL BWF Sudirman Cup, Gold Coast, AUS

• BCA Indonesia Open, Jakarta, INA

• YONEX Open Chinese Taipei, Taipei City, TPE

• YONEX Canada Open, Calgary, CAN

• TOTAL BWF World Championships, Glasgow, SCO

• BWF World Senior Championships, Cochin, IND

• BWF World Junior Championships, Yogyakarta, INA

• Bitburger Badminton Open, Saarbrucken, GER

• Macau Open, Macau, MAC

REFEREES UPGRADED TO THE BWF CERTIFICATED LEVEL

• Lynne Nixey (NZL) 

• Eric Lissillour (FRA)

Assessments were completed at the BWF World Senior Championships 
and BWF World Junior Championships.

REFEREES UPGRADED TO THE BWF ACCREDITED LEVEL

• Cleopatra Monco (ITA)

• Carmen Martinez (ESP)

• Jozef Dodo Kulprivec (SLO)

Assessments were completed at the VICTOR Croatian International 
Challenge, Eurasia Bulgarian Open, and VICTOR Polish International.

UMPIRE ASSESSMENT 

Umpire Assessors completed appraisals at the following events:

• YONEX Swiss Open, Basel, SUI

• YONEX SUNRISE India Open, New Delhi, IND

TECHNICAL 
OFFICIALS
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• CELCOM AXIATA Malaysia Open, Kuching, MAS

• TOTAL BWF Sudirman Cup, Gold Coast, AUS

• BCA Indonesia Open, Jakarta, INA

• TOTAL BWF World Championships, Glasgow, SCO

• VICTOR Korea Open, Seoul, KOR

• DANISA Denmark Open, Odense, DEN

• YONEX French Open, Paris, FRA

• Dubai World Superseries Finals, Dubai, UAE

UMPIRES UPGRADED TO THE BWF CERTIFICATED LEVEL 

• Mai Lang Yen (VIE)

• Qomarul Lailiah (INA)

• Daniel Law Chi Kwong (HKG)

• Paul Buffham (ENG)

Assessments were completed at the TOTAL BWF Sudirman Cup 2017.

UMPIRES UPGRADED TO THE BWF ACCREDITED LEVEL

• Steven Ong Swee Khai (MAS)

• Robbertus Tommy Oscariano (INA)

• Charles Wang Chao Wei (TPE)

• Jojan Veliyakath Arukattil John (BRN)

Assessments were completed at the OUE Singapore Open and TOTAL 
BWF World Championships.

TECHNICAL OFFICIALS COMMISSION

The BWF Technical Officials Commission (TOC) met 20 - 21 August 
2017 in Glasgow, Scotland, in conjunction with the TOTAL BWF World 
Championships 2017.

The following members comprised the TOC in 2017:

• Gilles Cavert, Chair

• Peter Tarcala, Chair of Events Committee

• Torsten Berg, Chair of BWF Referee Assessment Panel

• Malcolm Banham, Chair of BWF Umpire Assessment Panel

• Jean-Guy Poitras, Pan Am Badminton Confederation

• Peter Cocker, Badminton Oceania

• Diraj Gooneadry, Badminton Confederation of Africa

• Jimmy Andersen, Badminton Europe

• Chua Soo Hock, Badminton Asia
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HIGHLIGHTS 2017 

• Elections were held in May 2017. Four new members were elected 
- P.V Shindu, Kirsty Gilmore, Marc Zwiebler and Akvile Stapusaityte. 
A new Chair (Koen Ridder) and Vice Chair (Marc Zwiebler) were 
elected by the Commission in June.

• The Athletes’ Commission looked at ways to better serve the 
athletes including the opportunity of an English language course 
for athletes and entourage members so they can better interact 
with media and improve their presence, presentation and profile 
through various digital platforms. 

• The Commission encouraged Continental Confederations to 
create continental Athletes’ Commissions to ensure an athletes’ 
voice on decision making bodies at a continental level and to 
get a better reach to all corners of the world through these 
commissions.

COMMITTEE SCOPE OF WORK 

• To establish a method of seeking players opinions on issues of 
major importance in badminton that aims to reach as wide a 
player demographic as possible.

• To work constructively with the BWF to provide player feedback on 
areas of player interest as entrusted to the Athletes Commission 
by the BWF.

• To establish a method of seeking players opinions on issues of 
major importance in badminton that aims to reach as wide a 
player demographic as possible.

• To work constructively with the BWF to provide player feedback on 
areas of player interest as entrusted to the Athletes Commission 
by the BWF.

2017 IN REVIEW

The Athletes Commission had another busy year and held meetings in 
May (Gold Coast), August (Indonesia) and December (Dubai). The year 

was an election year and this resulted in four new members joining the 
Commission in May 2017.

There were a lot of topics to canvass through the athlete population 
last year including the implementation of a rule for a fixed service 
height, prize money, the on-going discussion on the presentation 
of the sport and the scoring system, and ways to improve athletes’ 
engagement with media.

COMMISSION ELECTIONS 2017

In May in conjunction with the TOTAL BWF Sudirman Cup, elections 
were held for four positions (three positions for a four year term and a 
casual vacancy for a two year term). 

I would like to thank Yuhan Tan, the previous Chair for the great work 
in the last two years as Chair together with retiring members Hans-
Kristian Vittinghus (Denmark) and Greysia Polii (Indonesia) who 
concluded their four-year terms in May 2017. 

Olympic silver medallist, Pusarla V Sindhu of India, Kirsty Gilmour of 
Scotland and Germany’s Marc Zwiebler were elected for a four-year 
term.  Lithuania’s Akvilė Stapusaityte was the third woman elected 
to the Commission in Gold Coast, and she will serve two years to 
complete the term of Tang Yuanting, the Chinese player who resigned 
following her retirement from badminton in late 2016, 

KEY FOCUSES 2017

The Athlete’s Commission plays an important role in seeking feedback 
from athletes on proposed changes to regulations, the implementation 
of new initiatives and it aims to improve the experience of athletes on 
the tournament circuit.

Key focuses for 2017 included the following:

• The Athletes’ Commission was closely involved in the discussions 
for the new service height rules. The approval to test these was 
confirmed by Council in November 2017 and the rules will be 
tested from March 2018.

• The scoring system and the possibility to change this remains a 
hot topic and the Athletes’ Commission gathered a lot of feedback 
from the players throughout the year.

• The Athletes’ Commission is working with the BWF on a Players 
Undertaking document. This aims to provide the key rules and 
ethical principles that each athlete should sign up to and follow. 
The document helps to raise awareness of rights and obligations 
as well as commits players to following the rules as individuals 
within an international system of competition.

ATHLETES’ 
COMMISSION
KOEN RIDDER - CHAIR
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REPRESENTATION

• During the year, the Athletes’ Commission was represented 
at the 8th IOC Athletes’ Forum held in Lausanne in November. 
The three day event in 2017 involved more than 100 athletes 
representatives. The Forum aimed to inform athletes about the 
IOC Athletes’ Commission and the new “All In” Strategy – and to 
consult athletes on key issues such as anti-doping, to focus on 
athletes’ rights and to empower athletes’ commissions and their 
chairs to become effective leaders.

The Forum was an opportunity to meet with other Athletes’ 
Commission Chairs and compare ways for more efficient 
dissemination of information and ways to better engage the athlete 
population in decision in making. 

The three conclusions from the Forum were:

1. A need for a strong network of athletes’ commissions that is 
united and connected.

2. A need for better, clearer and consistent communication within 
the network of athletes’ commissions and from the IOC Athletes’ 
Commission.

3. An objective for athletes’ commissions to be the true voice of 
athletes to ensure their credibility.

The Athlete’s Commission Chair was elected to join the IOC Steering 
Committee on the Charter of Athlete Rights and Responsibilities. 

ENGAGEMENT

• The Athletes’ Commission suggested to the BWF that each 
continent be set up with an Athletes’ Commission, to get more 
detailed info from all corners of the world and to build the network 
of athlete leaders in the badminton community. 

•  There continues to be a challenges with communication and the 
Athletes’ Commission is working hard to find ways how we can 
overcome the language barriers including looking at language 
courses so athletes can better represent themselves in media and 
through digital platforms.

• The Athletes’ Commission is looking at a new concept for the 
next Athletes Forum to be hosted in Bangkok in May 2018 where 
there will be professional speakers about social media and career 
pathways after their professional playing career has ended.

COMMISSION MEMBERS 

Koen Ridder – Chair 
Marc Zwiebler – Deputy Chair
Pusarla V. Shindu
Kirsty Gilmore 
Shintaro Ikeda
Akvile Stapusaityte  
Saina Nehwal (ex-offico member)
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TOTAL BWF SUDIRMAN CUP 2017
GOLD COAST, AUSTRALIA, 21-28 MAY 2017

The TOTAL BWF Sudirman Cup 2017 was historic as it was held in 
Oceania for the first time ever – with Gold Coast laying out the red 
carpet for the 27 competing teams. 

Finals day served up a superb battle to conclude the eight-day 
tournament. It had everything that a title clash could possibly demand 
– a face-off between an in-form power and an underdog; see-sawing 
fortunes, displays of nerves as well as fortitude, and finally, the 
triumph of the underdog.

Korea, normally, would have been considered one of the top 
contenders for the BWF World Mixed Team Championships. However, 
in Gold Coast, they were without many of their top stars who had 

retired in the post-Olympic period. Consequently, Korea had to depend 
on a few experienced players, backed up by a clutch of young talent.

In a riveting final, China went ahead twice, but each time Korea clawed 
back. It was down to the final match between China’s in-form pair Lu 
Kai and Huang Yaqiong and Korea’s unheralded Choi Solgyu and Chae 
Yoo Jung. In dramatic circumstances, the Chinese faltered under 
relentless pressure to hand an inspired Korea the title. It was Korea’s 
first Sudirman Cup triumph since 2003 and their fourth Sudirman Cup 
title overall (1991, 1993, 2003, 2017).

Thailand and Japan won bronze medals in Group 1. Vietnam defeated 
Singapore to emerge on top in Group 2, while Sri Lanka won Group 3 
defeating Macau.

ORDER OF RANKING 

1. KOREA
2. CHINA 
3. JAPAN
3. THAILAND
5. INDIA 
5. MALAYSIA
5. CHINESE TAIPEI
5. DENMARK
9. HONG KONG 

9. RUSSIA
9. GERMANY
9. INDONESIA
13. VIETNAM
14. SINGAPORE
15.AUSTRALIA
16.CANADA
17.SCOTLAND
18.USA

19.NEW ZEALAND
20.AUSTRIA
21.SRI LANKA
22. MACAU
23.SLOVAKIA
24.NEW CALEDONIA
25. FIJI
26. GUAM 
27.TAHITI

RESULTS 2017
PODIUM FINISHES
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TOTAL BWF WORLD CHAMPIONSHIPS 2017
GLASGOW, SCOTLAND, 21-27 AUGUST 2017

The TOTAL BWF World Championships 2017 in Glasgow had many 
thrilling matches, but one in particular will linger in fans’ memories. 
Long-time badminton watchers have even called it one of the greatest 
matches of all time.

This was the women’s singles title clash between India’s Pusarla V 
Sindhu and Japan’s Nozomi Okuhara. Both contestants were pushed 
to their physical and mental limits in every rally, treating the captivated 
audience to an epic spectacle. It ended dramatically in 110 minutes, 
with Okuhara extracting the decisive error from Pusarla. 

About an hour after that, Viktor Axelsen won Denmark’s first men’s 
singles title since 1997 – incidentally, won in the same city – as 
he defeated Chinese great Lin Dan, marking the arrival of the new 
generation at the highest level.

China claimed two doubles titles, through Liu Cheng/Zhang Nan 
(men’s doubles) and Chen Qingchen/Jia Yifan (women’s doubles), 
while Indonesia’s Tontowi Ahmad/Liliyana Natsir (mixed doubles) 
added their second world title to their Rio 2016 Olympic gold. Both 
Zhang and Natsir celebrated the fourth world titles of their illustrious 
careers.

For the hosts, the performance of Kirsty Gilmour – who reached 
the women’s singles quarter-finals – was testament to the growing 
prowess of Scottish badminton.

EVENT GOLD SILVER BRONZE

Men's Singles Viktor Axelsen (DEN) Lin Dan (CHN) Son Wan Ho (KOR)

Chen Long (CHN)

Women's Singles Nozomi Okuhara (JPN) Pusarla V. Sindhu (IND) Chen Yufei (CHN)

Saina Nehwal (IND)

Men's Doubles Liu Cheng/ Zhang Nan (CHN) Mohammed Ahsan / Rian Agung Saputro 

(INA)

Takeshi Kamura/ Keigo Sonoda (JPN)

Chai Biao / Hong  Wei (CHN)

Women's Doubles Chen Qingchen/Jia Yifan (CHN) Yuki Fukushima/Sayaka Hirota (JPN) Misaki Matsutomo/Ayaka Takahashi (JPN)

Kamilla Ryter Juhl/Christinna Pedersen (DEN)

Mixed Doubles Tontowi Ahmad/Lilyana Natsir (INA) Zheng Siwei/Chen Qingchen (CHN) Lee  Chun Hei / Chau Hoi Wah (KOR)

Chris Adcock/ Gabrielle Adcock (ENG)
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DUBAI WORLD SUPERSERIES FINALS 2017
DUBAI, UNITED ARAB EMIRATES 
13-17 DECEMBER 2017

2017 was the last year of the BWF World Superseries and after 10 
years of competition, it was fitting that the Series closed with the 
Dubai World Superseries Finals, in which the five titles went to four 
nations.

The Dubai World Superseries Finals was a spectacular farewell for the 
MetLife BWF World Superseries season which consisted of 12 events 
through the year. This was the fourth time Dubai hosted the Finals, 
and it delivered the event in style. The top eight players and pairs were 
decided based on their cumulative rankings on the Destination Dubai 
Rankings which ran throughout the year across the 12 legs of the 
2017 Series.

Denmark’s Viktor Axelsen rounded off a glorious year as he outplayed 
Malaysia’s Lee Chong Wei in the men’s singles final to retain his title. 
Japan’s Akane Yamaguchi achieved her best-ever result in denying 
India’s Pusarla V Sindhu in a women’s singles final that almost rivalled 
the World Championships final for quality. 

Indonesia’s Marcus Fernaldi Gideon and Kevin Sanjaya Sukamuljo 
achieved the kind of results that most pairs can only dream of as they 
added a seventh Superseries title for 2017, defeating World Champions 
Liu Cheng/Zhang Nan in the men’s doubles final. Japan has of late 
dominated women’s doubles; the final showcased two of their best 
pairs – Shiho Tanaka/Koharu Yonemoto and Yuki Fukushima/Sayaka 
Hirota – with top-seeded Tanaka/Yonemoto emerging victorious. The 
mixed doubles crown went to China’s Zheng Siwei/Chen Qingchen 
who defended Hong Kong’s Tang Chun Man/Tse Ying Suet.

EVENT GOLD SILVER BRONZE

Men's Singles Viktor Axelsen (DEN) Lee Chong Wei (MAS) Shi Yuqi (CHN)
Son Wan Ho (KOR)

Women's Singles Akane Yamaguchi (JPN) Pusarla V. Sindhu (IND) Chen Yufei (CHN)

Ratchanok Intanon (THA)

Men's Doubles Marcus Fernaldi Gideon / Kevin Sanjaya 

Sukamuljo (INA)

Liu Cheng / Zhang Nan (CHN) Mathias Boe / Carsten Mogensen (DEN) 

Takeshi Kamura / Keigo Sonoda (JPN)

Women's Doubles Shiho Tanaka / Koharu Yonemoto (JPN) Yuki Fukushima /Sayaka Hirota (JPN) Kamilla Ryt Juhl / Christina Pedersen (DEN) 

Huang Yaqiong / Yu Xiaohan (CHN)

Mixed Doubles Zheng Siwei / Chen Qingchen (CHN) Tang Chun Man / Tse Ying Suet (HKG) Tontowi Ahmad / Lillyana Natsir (INA)

Wang Yilyu / Huang Dong Ping (CHN)
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1. China 

2. Malaysia

3. Korea

3 Japan

5 Indonesia

6 India

7 Thailand 

8 France

9 England 

10 Sweden

11 Chinese - Taipei

12 Singapore

13 Spain 

14 Russia

15 Poland

16 Belgium

17 Denmark 

18 Canada 

19 Philippines 

20     New Zealand

21 Brazil 

22 USA

23 Scotland 

24 Macau

25 Hong Kong

26 Germany

27 Hungary 

28 Slovakia

29 Finland 

30 Norway 

31 South Africa

32 Latvia 

33 Netherlands 

34      Bulgaria 

35      Australia

36      Ghana

37      Sri Lanka 

38      El Salvador 

39      Egypt 

40      Georgia 

41      Czech Republic

42      Nepal 

43      Mongolia 

44      Armenia 

B BLIBLI.COM YONEX-SUNRISE BWF 
WORLD JUNIOR CHAMPIONSHIPS- 
YOGJAKARTA, INDONESIA – SUHANDINATA 
CUP - 9 – 14 OCTOBER 2017

The BWF World Junior Championships for the Suhandinata Cup 
2017 (team event) had 44 Member Associations representing all five 
continental confederations.

The tournament ended with a spectacular final between China and 
Malaysia. Withstanding a small initial dent, China stood firm against 
all the firepower Malaysia could muster, magnificently defending their 
country’s honour in the final of the BWF World Junior Mixed Team 
Championships 2017.

Perennial powerhouse, China, decisively retained the gleaming 
Suhandinata Cup, 3-1, to celebrate a remarkable 12th title in the 
prestigious tournament. Across the net from the same rivals whom 
they beat 3-0 in Spain last November, China’s players had to dig a little 
deeper on this occasion, with Malaysia striking an early blow in the 
opening mixed doubles encounter in Yogyakarta, Indonesia.

While the hard-fought 21-12 9-21 21-17 result by Man Wei Chong / Tan 
Koong Le stirred Malaysian hopes, it stoked the fire in China’s belly and 
the proud title-holders rose to the challenge emphatically, seizing the 
next three matches, including both singles events on which Malaysia 
had been desperately depending.

FINAL RANKING ORDER OF SUHANDINATA CUP 2017
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EVENT GOLD SILVER BRONZE

Men’s Singles Kunlavut Vitidsarn (THA) Leong Jun Hao (MAS) Gao Zhengze (CHN)
Kodai Naraoka (JPN)

Women’s Singles Gregoria Mariska Tunjung (INA) Han Yue (CHN) Cai Yanyan (CHN)
Goh Jin Wei (MAS)

Men’s Doubles Mahiro Kaneko/Yunosuke Kubota (JPN) Di Zijian/ Wang Chang (CHN) Kang Min-hyuk/Kim Won-ho (KOR)
Rinov Rivaldy/Yeremia Erich Yoche Yacob (INA)

Women’s Doubles Baek Ha-Na/Lee Yu-rim (KOR) Jauza Fadhila Sugiarto/
Ribka Sugiarto (INA)

Li Wenmei/Liu Xuanxuan(CHN)
Xia Yuting/Zhang Shuxian(CHN)

Mixed Doubles Rinov Rivaldy/ Pitha Haningtyas 
Mentari (INA)

Rehan Naufal Kusharjanto/
Siti Fadia Silva Ramadhanti (INA)

Fan Qiuyue/Liu Xuanxuan (CHN)
Liu Shiwen/Li Wenmei (CHN)

YOGJAKARTA 2017 LIST OF MEDAL WINNERS - INDIVIDUAL CHAMPIONSHIPS

B BLIBLI.COM YONEX-SUNRISE BWF 
WORLD JUNIOR CHAMPIONSHIPS – 
YOGJAKARTA, INDONESIA – EYE LEVEL 
CUPS, 16 – 22 OCTOBER 2017

Yogjakarta 2017 set a new record for the individual’s entry with 64 
Member Associations taking part in the individual championships in 
2017. The individual event at the Blibli.com Yonex-Sunrise BWF World 
Junior Championships 2017 showcased the best junior talent from 
around the world with 566 players competing for the five titles for the 
Eye Level cups as well as scholarships sponsored by former BWF 
President Dr. Kang Young Joong.

Finals day was spectacular and the showcase of the two week event. 
China surrendered its hold on the men’s doubles title, being shut out of 
gold-medal glory for the first time since 2012.

In another of the day’s historic breakthroughs, Mahiro Kaneko and 
Yunosuke Kubota took Japan to unprecedented heights, resisting the 
challenge from Di Zijian and Wang Chang to win the men’s tandem – 

a success which their country had never achieved before. The No.4 
seeds began and finished strongly, sealing gold with a 21-14 15-21 
21-13 result versus the No.13 seeds in 47 minutes. 

Meanwhile, Baek Ha Na and Lee Yu Rim salvaged a poor showing 
by Korea, wresting the women’s doubles championship amid 
overwhelming support for local favourites, Jauza Fadhila Sugiarto/
Ribka Sugiarto. The No.2 seed rebounded smartly from losing the first 
game to seize control of the proceedings as they powered to gold: 18-
21 21-11 21-3 in 57 minutes.

Indonesian spirits soared high in mixed doubles in which the hosts 
were already assured of gold with team-mates, Rinov Rivaldy/Pitha 
Haningtyas Mentari and Rehan Naufal Kusharjanto/Siti Fadia Silva 
Ramadhanti, clashing for the ultimate honour.

Asian Junior champions, Kusharjanto and Ramadhanti took a tightly-
contested first game in which they saved three game points. Their 
peers struck back in the second game and then seized the lead at 
12-12 in the decider and never relinquished it with Ramadhanti clearly 
ailing in the latter stages. Rivaldy and Mentari took gold in 58 minutes: 
21-23 21-15 21-18.
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BWF WORLD SENIOR CHAMPIONSHIPS 2017
COCHIN, INDIA, 11 – 17 SEPTEMBER

Germany’s Heidi Bender won a triple crown at the BWF World Senior 
Championships 2017 to emerge as the most successful player of the 
Championships this year.

Bender won the women’s singles +55 category in the morning beating 
England’s Sue Sheen 21-8 21-8. She then returned to court for the 
mixed doubles +55 final with Indonesia’s Bobby Ertanto. The top 
seeds needed just 21 minutes to get past Thailand’s Bovornovadep 
Devakula/Juthatip Banjongsilp 21-15 21-8.

Bender’s third victory was in the women’s doubles +55 with Denmark’s 
Birte Bach Steffensen. It was another short affair for Bender and she 
and Steffensen powered past Japan’s Miyoko Sato/Kuniko Yamamoto 
21-12 21-15.

Nine players – Christine Crossley (England), Jim Garrett and Betty 
Bartlett (all England); Stanislav Pukhov, Maria Koloskova and Olga 
Arkhangelskaya (Russia); Bobby Ertanto (Indonesia), Dorte Steenberg 
(Denmark) and Pornroj Banditpisut (Thailand) – won two crowns 
each.

The closest matches of the 40 on finals day were in the men’s singles 
+60 and women’s doubles +70 categories.

In the men’s singles +60 final, top seed Dan Travers (Scotland) 
overcame a stubborn challenge from Sri Lankan second seed Arnold 
Dendeng after saving three match points in a 31-minute thriller: 13-21 
21-16 26-24.

The women’s doubles +70 final was similarly hotly contested between 
Japan’s Sumiko Ishikawa/Satoko Nakamura and England’s Beryl 
Goodall/Mary Jenner.

The third game was a topsy-turvy affair, with the Japanese duo 
recovering from 17-19 and saving two match points before their own 
third opportunity: 21-10 19-21 25-23.

The only Indians to win a title were Rupesh Kumar/Sanave Thomas 
in the men’s doubles +35 category. Kumar and Thomas were 21-
12 17-21 7-9 against compatriots V Diju/JBS Vidyadhar when their 
opponents retired.

Germany’s Elvira Richter won the women’s singles +70 in a tough 
three-setter, 21-15 20-22 21-10 over Japan’s Sumiko Kaneko, while in 
the women’s doubles +40, Louise Culyer (England)/Dorte Steenberg 
(Denmark) triumphed over two Olgas – Olga Bryant (England) and 
Olga Kuznetsova (Russia).

EVENT MEN'S  SINGLES  (GOLD) WOMEN'S SINGLES (GOLD) MEN'S DOUBLES (GOLD) WOMEN'S DOUBLES (GOLD) MIXED DOUBLES (GOLD)

35+ Stanislav Pukhov (RUS) Olga Arkhangelskaya (RUS) K.T. Rupesh Kumar/ 

Sanave Thomas (IND)

Olga Arkhangelskaya/ 

Maria Koloskova (RUS)

Stanislav Pukhov/

Maria Koloskova (RUS)

40+ Hosemari Fujimoto (JPN) Claudia Vogelgsang (GER) Phongthep Imkaew/

Worapoj Somchariya (THA)

Louise Culyer/ 

Dorte Steenberg (ENG/ DEN)

Carsten Loesch/ 

Dorte Steenberg (DEN)

45+ Chang Jun Wu (TPE) Csilla Gondane Forian (HUN) Chatchai Boonmee/

Wittaya Panomchai (THA)

Tracey Middleton/

Joanne Muggeridge (ENG)

Nick Ponting/ 

Julie Bradbury (ENG)

50+ Karoon Kasayapanan (THA) Zhou Xin (HKG) Bobby Ertanto/

Wei Ping Ting (INA/MAS)

Betty Blair/

Debora Miller (ENG)

Alexandar Tandun/

Rosiana Tendan (INA)

55+ Pornroj Bandipisut (THA) Heidi Bender (GER) Pornroj Banditpisut/

Nattapol Sanlekanun(THA)

Birte Bach Steffensen / 

Heidi Bender (DEN/GER)

Bobby Ertanto/

Heidi Bender (INA/GER)

60+ Dan Travers (SCO) Christine M Crossley (ENG) Sergey Bushuev/

Vladimir Koloskov(RUS)

Sugako Morita/

Sayoko Takebayashi (JPN)

Ian M Purton/ 

Christine M Crossley (ENG)

65+ Johan Croukamp (RSA) Betty Bartlett (ENG) Peter Emptage/ 

Graham Holt (ENG)

Betty Bartlett/

Eileen M Carley (ENG)

Henry Paynter/ 

Siew Har Hong (CAN)

70+ Jim Garrett (ENG) Elvira Ricther(GER) Akira Hirota/

Shinjiro Matsuda(JPN)

Sumiko Ishikawa/

Satoko Nakamura (JPN)

Jim Garrett/

Susan Awcock (ENG)
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PARA-BADMINTON COMMITTEE 

HIGHLIGHTS 2017

• The highest number of Para-Badminton tournaments in a calendar 
year. 

• BWF Para-Badminton World Championships 2017 a great success 
with the event being embraced by the city of Ulsan.

• Tokyo 2020 Paralympic Games – IPC announces the number 
of athletes by sport. Badminton will have 90 athletes competing 
across 14 medal events.

• Lima Parapan Am Games 2019 – 52 athletes, 8 medal events.

• Agitos Legacy Project in Lima, Peru – 52 new athletes classified, 
10 coaches and 8 national administrators trained from six 
countries.

• United Nations Badminton for All Project - 45 tutors and 500+ 
teachers trained.

COMMITTEE SCOPE OF WORK

The key focus of the Committee is to:

• Promote Para-Badminton and provide advice on the integration of 
Para-Badminton at all levels.

• Review and recommend changes to regulations and laws. 

• Monitor planning and delivery of Para-Badminton competitions 
and the calendar of events. 

• Oversee the development of Para-Badminton including education 
programmes– classifiers, technical officials, coaches, event 
organisers.

2017 IN REVIEW

TOURNAMENTS 2017

2017 saw many successful tournaments being organised in four 
continents. Thank you to all the hosts of the tournaments in what was 
a very good year for participation in competitions.

• Spanish Para-Badminton International 2017

• Uganda Para-Badminton International 2017

• 3rd Turkish Para-Badminton International 2017

• Thailand Para-Badminton International 2017

• FZ Forza Irish Para-Badminton International 2017

• Peru Para-Badminton International 2017

• Japan Para-Badminton International 2017

• Brazil Para-Badminton International 2017

• USA Para-Badminton International 2017

The number of international tournaments increased from four in 2016 
to nine in 2017. Thailand, Japan, USA and Uganda organized their first 
ever BWF sanctioned para-badminton tournament. The tournament in 
Kampala, Uganda was the first in Africa.

The Japan Para-Badminton International attracted 175 athletes from 
26 countries which was the largest Para-Badminton International ever 
hosted.  

The overall standard of tournament organisation has improved over 
the last year and the management is constantly working with hosts 
to deliver better tournament experience for the athletes and teams.

A total of 227 new athletes were classified and entered their first 
international competition in 2017. 

PARA-BADMINTON
PAUL KURZO - CHAIR
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BWF PARA-BADMINTON WORLD 
CHAMPIONSHIPS, ULSAN KOREA 
22 – 26 NOVEMBER 2017

Korea Badminton Association for the Disabled (KBAD) and Ulsan 
Metropolitan City were the host for the BWF Para-Badminton World 
Championships and what really great hosts the city of Ulsan was. It 
seemed like the whole city embraced the diversity and got behind this 
event. The venue Dongchun Gymnasium hosted 264 athletes from 41 
countries across 5 continents.
 
The number of athletes and countries increased from 2015 and the 
standard of play has improved tremendously. For further information 
on the championships, please refer to the Para-Badminton World 
Championships page of this report.

TOKYO 2020 PARALYMPIC GAMES
(PARA) BADMINTON COMPETITION

On 4 September 2017, the International Paralympic Committee (IPC) 
announced that Badminton was allocated 90 athletes for the Tokyo 
2020 Paralympic Games. Athletes will compete in a total of 14 medal 
events. All six classes in Para-Badminton will be represented at the 
Games.

MEN WOMEN MIXED

Men’s Singles WH 1
Men’s Singles WH 2
Men’s Singles SL3
Men’s Singles SL4
Men’s Singles SU5
Men’s Singles SS6
Men’s Doubles WH1 – WH2

Women’s Singles WH 1
Women’s Singles WH 2
Women’s Singles SL4
Women’s Singles SU5
Women’s Doubles WH1 – WH2 
Women’s Doubles SL3 – SU5

Mixed Doubles SL3 – SU5

A working group was established through the Para-Badminton 
Commission to look at the programme, regulations and qualification 
system for Tokyo 2020 Paralympic Games. 

LIMA PARAPAN AMERICAN GAMES 2019

The IPC and Lima 2019 Organising Committee confirmed that 
badminton will be allocated 52 athletes for the Lima Parapan American 
Games 2019. Athletes will compete in a total of eight medal events. 
All six classes in para-badminton will be represented at the Games. 

MEN WOMEN MIXED

Men’s Singles SL3
Men’s Singles SL4
Men’s Singles SU5
Men’s Singles SS6
Men’s Doubles WH1 – WH2

Women’s Singles WH 2
Women’s Singles SU5

Mixed Doubles SL3 – SU5
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PROMOTION

Increasing the amount of media coverage on Para-Badminton was 
important in 2017. The following efforts were undertaken to increase 
the sport’s presence in the media:

• Increased para-badminton coverage in BWF’s weekly magazine 
show, “Badminton Unlimited”.

• Increased BWF’s coverage of tournaments through media articles.

• Developed highlight videos from Peru and the BWF Para-
Badminton World Championships

• Engaged the IPC to post articles about the BWF Para-Badminton 
World Championships as well as providing them with video for the 
Top 50 IPC Moments for 2017.

PARA-BADMINTON DEVELOPMENT

In 2017 the BWF delivered a number of initiatives aimed at developing 
para-badminton within the five Continental Confederations. The 
areas we have encouraged in development are - participation, coach 
education, player development, national classifier development and 
research in para-badminton. Below is a summary of some of these 
activities: 

• Female Participation Grants - 20 grants were awarded to support 
international classification and participation at an international 
event for female players from 16 countries.

• IPC IF Sports Grants - 12 athlete scholarships and three coach 
scholarships awarded across all five Continental Confederations. 

• AGITOS Legacy Project Peru - 52 new athletes classified, 10 
coaches and 8 national administrators trained from six countries 
(Peru, Brazil, Argentina, Chile, Mexico and Colombia). 

• United Nations Badminton for All Project- Engaging children with 
physical and intellectual disabilities in sport through badminton - 
45 tutors and 500+ teachers trained.

• Disability Coaching Workshop- New workshop developed, 12 
continental tutors and 22 coaches trained. 

• Regional Projects- Activities delivered in Egypt, Canada, Peru, 
Nepal, Malaysia and Dubai. 

• National Classifier Workshops- 32 National Classifiers educated.

• AGITOS Proud Paralympian Courses- Career, education and 
awareness support provided to 52 athletes. 

• BWF Para-Badminton World Championships Coaches Workshop 
- 51 coaches from 30 countries registered. 

• New grant structure developed for Continental Confederations, 
covering Participation and Player Development Grants. 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS

Paul Kurzo – Chair
Wayne Somers – Deputy Chair
Geraldine Brown
Khunying Patama
Nora Perry
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BWF PARA-BADMINTON WORLD 
CHAMPIONSHIPS, ULSAN CITY, KOREA
22 – 26 NOVEMBER 2017

The BWF Para-Badminton World Championships 2017 was organised 
by Korea Badminton Association for the Disabled (KBAD) and Ulsan 
Metropolitan City, Korea. It was the largest BWF Para-Badminton 
World Championships to date. The number of atheletes increased 
from 2015 and the level of play increased tremendously. 

The competition venue, Dongchun Gymnasium, hosted 264 athletes 
from 41 countries across 5 continents. This is an increase from 2015 
including first time participation from countries such as Egypt and 
Tonga.

CONTINENT PARTICIPATING COUNTRIES

CONTINENT  PARTICIPATING COUNTRIES

Europe Austria, Belgium, Denmark, England, Finland, France, Germany, 

Ireland, Israel, Italy, Netherlands, Norway, Poland, Russia, Scotland, 

Spain, Switzerland, Sweden, Turkey

Asia China, Chinese Taipei, Hong Kong, Indonesia, India, Japan, Korea, 

Macau, Malaysia, Singapore, Sri Lanka, Thailand, Vietnam

Pan Am Brazil, Canada, Guatemala, Peru, USA

Oceania Australia, New Zealand, Tonga

Africa Egypt

Japan attended the tournament as the biggest team with 28 athletes 
while India came with 24. China and host country, Korea participated 
with 18 athletes each in their teams. 

The biggest winner of the Championships was Rachel Choong (ENG), 
who captured her second consecutive triple gold medal at a BWF 
Para-Badminton World Championships. She won her (Short Stature 
- SS6) women’s singles, women’s doubles and mixed doubles events 
all on the last day of the Championships. Her wins contributed to 
England’s 4 gold medal haul after Jack Shepard overcame compatriot 
Krysten Coombs 21-10 19-21 21-23 in the SS6 men’s singles finals.

Korean athletes Lee Sam Seop (Wheelchair - WH1) and Kim Jung 
Jun (Wheelchair - WH2) showed why they are regarded as the best 
athletes in their class by winning their respective men’s singles event 
in the wheelchair classes. They then partner each other to win the 
WH1 – WH2 men’s doubles event. 

A repeat of the same final in 2015, France’s Lucas Mazur kept his 
composure and went one better by winning the SL4 men’s singles 
event beating Tarun Tarun of India 21-18 21-10. 

Thailand’s Jakarin Homhaul and Amnouy Wetwithan became world 
champions after winning against Korea’s Lee Sam Seop and Lee Sun 
Ae in their WH1 – WH2 mixed doubles finals.

Travelling with only six athletes did not deter Indonesia from doing 
well at the Championships when all of their athletes medalled. They 
took home 4 gold, 2 silver and 3 bronze medals.

One of Indonesia’s medal came after Suryo Nugroho and Tay Wei 
Ming (SGP) won a very entertaining Standing Upper - SU5 Men’s 
Doubles final match, by beating former world champions Cheah Liek 
Hou & Hairol Fozi Saaba (MAS). The latter was unbeaten in any BWF 
tournament the whole year until the finals.

Pan Am region unearthed a talent in Peruvian Carmen Giuliana 
Poveda Flores (SS6) who took home a silver from the SS6 women’s 
singles event and two bronze medals from the SS6 women’s doubles 
and mixed doubles. 

Japan’s Ayako Suzuki (SU5) overcame China’s Yan Qiuxa in a tense 
18-21 21-18 21-18 SU5 women’s singles final match. Her compatriot 
Akiko Sugino then won her SL3 – SU5 women’s doubles finals with 
India’s Parul Dalsukhbai Parmar to add to Japan’s tally of 2 golds and 
4 bronze medals.

China was the most successful team in the Championships capturing 
four golds, seven silvers, and four bronze medals. Their young star, Liu 
Yutong (WH2) captured everyone’s attention by being the youngest 
World Champion at age 13. Her teammate, Li Hongyan (WH1) took 
home two gold medals, winning her WH1 women’s singles and WH1 
– WH2 women’s doubles event. Cheng Hefang (SL4) completed their 
gold medal haul by beating Indonesia’s Leani Ratri Oktila in the SL4 
women’s Singles.

A total of 18 countries took home medals from the Championships. 

• China  - 4 Gold, 7 Silver, 4 Bronze

• Indonesia - 4 Gold (1 shared with Singapore), 2 Silver, 3  
    Bronze

• England - 4 Gold, 3 Silver (1 shared with France), 2 Bronze

• Korea  - 3 Gold, 3 Silver, 6 Bronze

PARA-BADMINTON 
WORLD 
CHAMPIONSHIPS
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• India   - 2 Gold (1 shared with Japan, 2 Silver, 5 Bronze  
    (1 shared with Thailand)

• Japan  - 2 Gold (1 shared with India), 4 Bronze

• Thailand  - 1 Gold, 2 Silver, 5 Bronze (1 shared with India)

• France  - 1 Gold, 3 Bronze (shared with Thailand, Russia,  
     England)

• Malaysia  - 1 Gold, 1 Silver, 3 Bronze

• Hong Kong  - 1 Gold, 2 Bronze

• Singapore  - 1 Gold (shared with Indonesia)

• Poland - 1 Silver (shared with Ireland), 3 Bronze

• Peru   - 1 Silver, 2 Bronze (shared with Sri Lanka &  
     Ireland)

• Ireland  - 1 Silver (shared with Poland), 1 Bronze  
      (shared with Peru)

• Germany  - 2 Bronze

• Denmark  - 1 Bronze

• Sri Lanka  - 1 Bronze (shared with Peru)

• Russia - 1 Bronze (shared with France)

Many development and technical activities took place during the 
Championships including National Classifier Courses, Coaching 
Workshop, Classifier Forum as well as Technical Delegate & Referee 
Workshop. 

BWF also organised the ‘i am badminton’ Integrity Campaign 
awareness activities at the Championships to raise awareness of 
clean and fair para-sport. 

The new Para-Badminton Athletes Commission was introduced on 
the last day of the Championships. The list of commission members 
can be found on the Para-Badminton Athletes Commission page of 
this report. 

BWF commended KBAD and Ulsan Metropolitan City for organising a 
great Championships for all the athletes, teams and officials. 

EVENT GOLD SILVER BRONZE

MS WH1 Lee Sam Seop (KOR) Qu Zimo (CHN) Thomas Wandschneider (GER)
Lee Dong Seop (KOR)

MS WH2 Kim Jung Jun (KOR) Kim Kyung Hoon (KOR) Ho Yuen Chan (HKG)
Madzlan Saibon (MAS)

MS SL3 Ukun Rukaendi (INA) Manoj Sarkar (IND) Xiaoyu Chen (CHN)
Pramod Bhagat (IND)

MS SL4 Lucas Mazur (FRA) Tarun Tarun (IND) Fredy Setiawan (INA)
Bakri Omar (MAS)

MS SU5 Cheah Liek Hou (MAS) Suryo Nugroho (INA) Taiyo Imai (JPN)
Bartlomiej Mroz (POL)

MS SS6 Jack Shepard (ENG) Krysten Coombs (ENG) Chun Yim Wong (HKG)
Didin Taresoh (MAS)

WS WH1 Li Hongyan (CHN) Zhang Jing (CHN) Son Ok Cha (KOR)
Sujirat Pookkham (THA)

WS WH2 Liu Yutong (CHN) XU Tingting (CHN) Lee Sun Ae (KOR)
Amnouy Wetwithan (THA)

WS SL3 Parul Dalsukhbhai Parmar (IND) Wannaphatdee Kamtam (THA) Manasi Girishchandra Joshi (IND)
Darunee Hepraiwan (THA)

WS SL4 Cheng Hefang (CHN) Leani Ratri Oktila (INA) Ma Huihui (CHN)
Khalimatus Sadiyah Sukohandoko (INA)

WS SU5 Ayako Suzuki (JPN) Yang Qiuxia (CHN) Cathrine Rosengren (DEN)
Mamiko Toyoda (JPN)

WS SS6 Rachel Choong (ENG) Carmen Giuliana Poveda Flores (PER) Rebecca Bedford (ENG)
Maria Bartusz (POL)

MD WH 1 – WH2 Kim Jungjun & Lee Sam Seop (KOR) Choi Jung Man & Kim Sung Hun (KOR) Junthong Dunmern & Jakarin Homhaul (THA)
Kim Kyung Hoon & Lee Dong Seop (KOR)

MD SL3 – SL4 Ukun Rukaendi & Hary Susanto (INA) Chen Xiaoyu & Yang Jianyuan (CHN) Siripong Teamarrom (THA) & Mathieu Thomas (FRA)
Chawarat Kitichokwattana (THA) & Umesh Vikram Kumar (IND)

MD SU5 Suryo Nugroho (INA) & Tay Wei Ming (SGP) Cheah Liek Hou & Hairol Fozi Saaba (MAS) Raj Kumar & Rakesh Pandey (IND)
Kim Gi Yeon & Shin Kyung Hwan (KOR)

MD SS6 Chu Man Kai & Wong Chun Yim (HKG) Krysten Coombs & Jack Shepard (ENG) Alexander Mekhdiev (RUS) & Fabien Morat (FRA)
Mark Joseph Dharmai & Raja Magotra (IND)

WD WH1 – WH2 Li Hongyan & Yang Fan (CHN) Sujirat Pookkham & Amnouy Wetwithan (THA) Ikumi Fuke & Yuma Yamazaki (JPN)
Liu Yutong & Zhang Jing (CHN)

WD SL3 – SU5 Parul Dalsukhbai Parmar (IND) 

& Akiko Sugino (JPN)

Cheng Hefang & Mai Huihui (CHN) Leani Ratri Oktila & Khalimatus Sadiyah Sukohandoko (INA)
Norito Ito & Mamiko Toyoda (JPN)

WD SS6 Rebecca Bedford & Rachel Choong (ENG) Maria Bartusz (POL) & Emma Farnham (IRL) Randika Doling (SRI) & Carmen Giuliana Poveda Flores (PER)
Daria Bujnicka & Oliwia Szmigiel (POL)

XD WH1 – WH2 Jakarin Homhaul & Amnouy Wetwithan (THA) Lee Sam Seop & Lee Sun Ae (KOR) Kim Jungjun & Kang Jung Kum (KOR)
Mai Jianpeng & Li Hongyan (CHN)

XD SL3 – SU5 Hary Susanto & Leani Ratri Oktila (INA) Yang Jianyuan & Yang Qiuxia (CHN) Marcel Adam & Katrin Seibert (GER)
Toshiaki Suenaga & Akiko Sugino (JPN)

XD SS6 Andrew Martin & Rachel Choong (ENG) Fabien Morat (FRA) & Rebecca Bedford (ENG) Niall McVeigh (IRL) & Carmen Giuliana Poveda Flores (PER)
Raja Magotra & Ruhi Satish Shingade (IND)
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HIGHLIGHTS OF 2017

• Commission members organised four players meetings this year 
in four countries across four continents (Uganda, Ireland, Peru, 
Japan) to meet athletes and to seek input from them and discuss 
issues in para-badminton.

• Para-Badminton Athletes’ Commission met five times during the 
year.

• The Chair and Deputy Chair have supported the “i am badminton” 
integrity campaign at various events including the BWF Para-
Badminton World Championships 2017 in Ulsan, Korea.

• Two Athletes’ Commission representatives attended the Para-
Badminton Commission meetings in Geneva in March and 
October 2017. 

• The Chair participated in the 1st IPC Athletes’ Forum, in Duisburg 
Germany.

• The Chair has been actively part of the Tokyo 2020 Paralympic 
Games working group to carry the athlete’s voice on the Tokyo 
2020 Para-Badminton programme and qualification process.

COMMISSION SCOPE OF WORK

The role of the Para-Badminton Athletes’ Commission is:

• To liaise with players, organise players meetings at tournaments 
and canvas their views and opinions on rules and regulations, 
development and direction of para-badminton.

• To represent the views of para-badminton athletes at Para-
Badminton Commission meetings through its representatives.

• To report back to the players on outcomes of meetings and 
representations made at the Para-Badminton Commission 
meetings.

2017 IN REVIEW

This year was the last year in the four years cycle of the Para-
Badminton Athletes’ Commission. The Commission focused on 
giving a chance for all athletes to meet the Commission members 
and attend a players meetings. Highlights of the year were:

• A key goal throughout the year was to make sure that active 
players are part of the Athletes’ Commission Facebook page in 
order to follow BWF key messages.

• Hosted at least one players meeting on each continent and talking 
to athletes face to faces. 

• The Commission has promoted key anti-doping and anti-
match fixing messages to the athlete population – highlighting 
Therapeutic Use Exemptions applications in particular.

• The Commission worked with the BWF to modify the next 
Commission structure & election process to have better 
representation of the player’s community (five members on 
the Commission with continental, gender and sport classes 
representation).

 

“I AM BADMINTON” INTEGRITY CAMPAIGN

The Commission embraced the programme that was launched in 
2015 and in 2016, the Chair of the Commission, Richard Perot became 
one of the ambassadors of the programme. The para-badminton 
athlete population have the same rules around anti-doping and anti-
match manipulation as their badminton counterparts.

Protection of the rights of “clean and honest” players is essential. 
The integrity awareness campaign aims to bring the key message of 
“clean and fair sport” to the players through the in-venue activations 
that focus on good sports values. The Commission is key to getting 
messages directly to the athlete population and the Commission 
members are a good role model for all athletes in this regard.

Activations were held at the Para-Badminton Continental 
Championships in Europe, Asia and Pan America and members of the 
Commission supported these on the ground.

PARA-BADMINTON 
ATHLETES’ 
COMMISSION
RICHARD PEROT  - CHAIR
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TOWARDS 2018

2018 will be the year of the new Commission with five members elected 
for a four year term at the Para-Badminton World Championships in 
late November 2017. The year will have some challenges and the new 
Commission will make sure the athletes understand the Tokyo 2020 
Paralympic Games programme and qualification process.

The Commission will propose that one player’s meeting is held on 
each of the five continents for the first time in 2018. This will allow 
Commission to send key messages, raise issues or answer questions 
along the year before the race to Tokyo 2020 starts.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Chair would like to sincerely thank Yau Tiam Ann, Antony 
Forster and Martin Rooke for their commitment in being part of the 
Commission during this 2013-2017 term.

Starting from scratch, the members have helped establish the basic 
tools (Facebook, players meetings and so on) that will allow the next 
Commission to increase and improve communication within the 
athletes community.

COMMISSION MEMBERS

• Richard Perot – Chair

• Raul Eduardo Anguiano Araujo  – Deputy Chair

• Anand Kumar

• Vello Rafiu Oyebanji

• Daniel Chan  
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DEVELOPMENT & SPORT 
FOR ALL COMMITTEE 

HIGHLIGHTS 2017

• The further development of Shuttle Time Schools Badminton 
Programme resources and the continued growth in delivery of the 
programme amongst Members.

• The creation of new development resources including the Disability 
Badminton Coaching Module which has been integrated into the 
BWF Level 1 coaching resources and the coaching framework.

• Delivery of the World Coaching Conference in parallel to the 
TOTAL BWF World Championships in Glasgow in August.

• Delivery of the African Badminton for All project, in partnership 
with the United Nations. 

• Awarded the prestigious Peace and Sport “Federation of the 
Year” award for our Shuttle Time Connect project which was 
in partnership with Sport Matters, Badminton Australia, the 
Australian Government and Badminton Nepal.

• Creation and implementation of a Para-Badminton Development 
strategy towards Tokyo 2020 (see Para-Badminton section for 
details).

• Completion of the BWF Coach 3 resources. 

COMMITTEE SCOPE OF WORK

The key focus of the committee is to:

• Ensure plans for the development of badminton are in line with the 
BWF Strategic Plan. 

• Work closely with the Continental Confederations and oversee 
the development grants programme – its structure, focus and 
investment and to ensure accountability.

• Develop training and education materials and models for 
Continental Confederations and Members, which support grass 
roots development and the education of the badminton workforce.

• Build effective partnerships with key international bodies to 
maximise opportunities for badminton.

2017 IN REVIEW

2017 saw many positive developments for our department, with the 
implementation of new resources and projects designed to further 
assist the development and growth of our Member Associations. 

SHUTTLE TIME
 
The BWF Shuttle Time Schools Badminton Programme continues 
to expand with 120 Members now having commenced national 
implementation programmes. 
 
Other key developments included:

• Resources available in 18+ languages.

• 31,000+ Teachers / 1,800+ Tutors trained.

• Shuttle Time website with 18,044 online registrations from 191 
countries.

• Shuttle Time App downloaded in 169 countries by over 20,320 
users. 

• Shuttle Time Facebook page with 9,000+ followers.

• Total number of Shuttle Time clip views on BWF TV passing 1.3 
million.

• Shuttle Time University Course, Youth Leaders Award and Online 
Module programmes delivered. 

• Maintained funding for equipment to support projects globally - 
total available per year $300,000.

DEVELOPMENT & 
SPORT FOR ALL
DAVID CABELLO - CHAIR
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COACH EDUCATION

Level 1 is now available in six languages (English, Spanish, French, 
Portuguese, Czech and Slovenian) and Level 2 is available in four 
languages (English, Spanish, French, and Portuguese). Further 
versions are currently in production. 

Key developments in 2017 included:

• The Coach Education video clips have received more than 3.5 
million views on BadmintonWorld.TV and have been translated 
into French.

• Close to 10,000 coach education resource packages have been 
downloaded.

• We now have 2000+ certified Level 1 coaches, and 200+ certified 
Level 2 coaches worldwide.

•  BWF Level 3 resources will be ready to pilot in early 2018.

• The 2nd edition of the BWF Coach Education Level 1 resource 
was published, including the new Disability Coaching module.

SPORTS SCIENCE
 
The main focus is on providing research grants for badminton 
research projects.

• Reports received from all 2016/17 funded projects.

• Ten research projects were selected by the panel for 2017/18 
financial support.

• Badminton and Health pilot project kicked-off in Abu Dhabi.

• A new literature review / search was completed and published on 
the website

• A project designed to address the topic of “Injury prevention in 
Elite Badminton” was initiated.

SHUTTLECOCK DEVELOPMENT

BWF is entering into the final stages of the two ongoing shuttlecock 
development projects. Working with our partners we are now in 
a position to enter into the final testing stages of both the indoor 
synthetic shuttlecock and the outdoor shuttlecock. It is expected that 
both projects will be completed in 2018. Patents for the design of the 
outdoor shuttlecock have now been posted and the project will be 
complemented by the development of a new outdoor version of our 
sport, which will be developed during 2018.
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PARTNERSHIPS
 
CONTINENTAL CONFEDERATIONS
 
The Continental Confederations (CCs) are central to our work in 
development. The annual Continental Confederation Forum took 
place 27-29 September 2017 in Kuala Lumpur and again was a 
great success, with three days of positive exchange of ideas which 
reinforced the strong working relationship between the CCs and the 
BWF development department. 

In 2017, a new annual planning and reporting template was introduced 
to allow better tracking of activities and allocation of grant funding. 
The BWF Council also approved a new programme of support, 
designed to increase the human resource capacity of CCs, which will 
allow them to deliver more and better programmes. 

OLYMPIC SOLIDARITY
 
The following are the Olympic Solidarity funded activities for 2017:

• 7 National Technical courses for coaches.

• 1 Development of National Sports System. 

• 22 Olympic scholarships for Tokyo 2020 accepted. 

• 2 Athlete Career Programmes delivered in France and Canada.

• 2 Olympic scholarships awarded for coaches.  

Increase in Olympic Solidarity programmes for 2017-2020 plan 
available for Member Associations.

UNITED NATIONS PARTNERSHIP- (UNHCR)

Following the closure of the UNOSDP Office in 2017, the BWF started to 
explore a new partnership with UNHCR, the UN Agency for Refugees. 
The BWF will pilot two projects aimed at providing opportunities for 
refugees and asylum seekers to access sport and physical activity 
through badminton. The pilot projects will be delivered in 2018 and will 
take place in Lebanon and France, in collaboration with local UNHCR 
field offices, Lebanon Badminton Federation and French Badminton 
Federation.  
 

ASIAN SPORTS PARTNERSHIPS

Badminton Australia were successful in securing aid funding to 
support Shuttle Time projects in Nepal and Bangladesh in 2017. 
BWF’s Development Team have supported the application and 
planning phase of the projects, with Badminton Asia providing experts 
to deliver Shuttle Time Tutor Training. In May, seven school pupils 
and two teachers from Nepal were given the opportunity to attend 
an exchange programme in conjunction with the Total BWF Sudirman 

Cup. This exchange was part of a larger initiative named Shuttle Time 
Connect, which provided cultural exchanges for pupils from Australia 
and Nepal through various media platforms. This innovative project 
was recognised at the 2017 Peace and Sport Awards, where the BWF 
won Federation of the Year.  
 
Outcomes
• 50+ Shuttle Time Tutors now trained as part of the programme.

• 500+ Shuttle Time Teachers now trained as part of the programme. 

• 160 School Kits were supplied to support the implementation of 
badminton programmes in schools.

 
 

SPECIAL OLYMPICS

During 2017 the BWF continued to develop its partnership with 
Special Olympics, both on an international and regional level. The 
BWF is currently supporting Special Olympics International with the 
development of a global badminton development plan. The Shuttle 
Time programme continues to be used as a key tool to support the 
provision of sporting activity for people with Intellectual Disabilities. 

Many of the BWFs Member Associations are now establishing 
partnerships to develop badminton programmes with their national 
Special Olympics organisation. In 2017 the BWF delivered a pilot 
project in collaboration with Special Olympics Arizona. The project 
aims to use badminton as a key sport to integrate students with 
intellectual disabilities into mainstream physical education and school 
competition, through a unified sports programme. 

2018 BUDGET 

In November, the BWF Council endorsed the 2018 Development 
and Sport for All budget which has an allocation of $4.176 million 
dedicated to the further development of our sport in partnership with 
our Continental Confederation partners. 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS

David Cabello – Chair
Moosa Nashid – Deputy Chair 
Anton Subowo
Dagmawit Girmay Berhane 
Geraldine Brown
Vishu Tolan
Gregory Verpoorten
Chipo Zumburani
Danlami Zama Sanchi
Wayne Somers 
Khunying Patama
Paul Kurzo
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IOC & INTERNATIONAL 
RELATIONS COMMITTEE

HIGHLIGHTS 2017

• Appointment of Khunying Patama Leeswadstrakul as member 
of the IOC in September 2017 is another indication of BWF’s 
contribution within the Olympic Family. 

• Appointment of Koen Ridder as a member of the IOC Charter 
of Athletes Rights Steering Committee is recognition of BWF‘s 
participation to the Olympic movement.

• Appointment of Dagmawit Girmay Berhane (already an IOC 
member) as member of the Coordination Commission Paris 2024

• Initiatives with various agencies, partners and sports 
organisations such as the UNHCR, Peace and Sport, Special 
Olympics International signify the importance of establishing 
strategic partnerships to achieve shared goals in badminton 
across diverse athlete populations.

• BWF was recognised with two awards in 2017 – the Peace and 
Sport “Federation of the Year Award” and the SPIA Asia Award - 
“Best International Organisation Operating in Asia”.

COMMITTEE SCOPE OF WORK

The key objective of the Committee is to:

• To establish and maintain productive relationships and 
partnerships within the Olympic and Paralympic movement 
to enhance the recognition of our sport and the promotion of 
excellence in BWF events and development initiatives.

• To continue to strengthen BWF’s position and value as a core 
sport within the Olympic programme and a sport in the Paralympic 
programme to enhance BWF’s representation and image as a 
Summer Olympic Games and Paralympic Games IF.

2017 IN REVIEW

Following BWF Council elections in May 2017, a new Committee was 
established with Anton Subowo as Chair and Robbert de Kock as 
Deputy Chair. This new Committee aims to further reinforce BWF’s 
presence and engagement in the institutional sports world. 

TOKYO 2020

The Committee is looking into opportunities and avenues to maximise 
the visibility of badminton from the Tokyo 2020 Olympic Games in 
nations that are already familiar with the sport. This will ensure a wider 
broadcast footprint from the Games. 

The BWF will look for similar opportunities for para-badminton as this 
will debut at the Paralympic Games in Tokyo.

REPRESENTATION

BWF continues its strong representation in the institutional sports 
world and particularly within the Olympic Family:

• BWF has several Council members who are IOC members 
amongst its ranks:

• BWF President, Poul-Erik Høyer is a member of the IOC 
Entourage Commission and the IOC Evaluation Commission 
for the bid cities of the 2024 Olympic Games.

• Khunying Patama Leeswadtrakul, who was elected as 
BWF Council member in May 2017 became BWF’s latest 
representative when she was elected as IOC member at the 
131 IOC session in Lima, Peru in September 2017. 

• Council member, Dagmawit Girmay Berhane serves on the 
IOC Women and Sport Commission and Members Election 
Committee and in 2017, was elected as Member of the 
Coordination Commission Paris 2024. She has also been 
elected to the board of the Association of National Olympic 
Committee (ANOC).

• Honorary Life Vice President, Sir Craig Reedie has been an 
IOC member since 1994 and is currently WADA President. 
Sir Craig was until late in 2016, IOC Vice President and IOC 
Executive Board Member.

• BWF also gives voice to athletes with the presence of :

• Council member and Chair of Athletes Commission, Koen 
Ridder was appointed as member of the Charter of Athletes 
Rights Steering Committee

• Saina Nehwal has been a member of the IOC Athletes’ 
Commission since October 2016.

• BWF is also visible through:

• Council member, Etienne Thobois as CEO of the Organising 
Committee for the Paris 2024 Olympic Games.

• Former Council member, Li Lingwei serves on the 
IOC Entourage Commission, the Olympic Programme 
Commission, Olympic Solidarity Programme and the 
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Coordination Commission for the 3rd Summer Youth Olympic 
Games in 2018 in Buenos Aires remains a firm badminton 
advocate.

• In the multi-sports arena, BWF is represented by:

• President Poul-Erik Høyer who is on the board of International 
Masters Games Association.

• Council member, Geraldine Brown is Co-Vice President of 
Commonwealth Games Australia.

• 2017 proved to be an active year as BWF representatives 
participated in major IOC and international sports meetings:

• IF Forum on Sport Integrity – February 2017

• IOC World Conference on the Prevention of Injury and Illness 
in Sports - March 2017

• SportAccord Convention – Aarhus,  Denmark - April 2017

• FISU Summer Universiade – Taipei, Taiwan - August 2017

• 131st IOC Session – Lima, Peru –  September 2017

• ASOIF Governance Workshop – Lausanne, Switzerland –
October 2017

• IF Forum -  Lausanne, Switzerland – November 2017

• ASOIF Medical Workshop - November 2017

• IOC International Athletes Forum, Lausanne, Switzerland – 
November 2017

• With the debut of para-badminton at the Tokyo 2020 Paralympic 
Games, the BWF President and Secretary General attended the 
General Assembly of the International Paralympic Committee in 
Abu Dhabi, UAE in September 2017 where the new IPC Governing 
Board was elected with a new IPC President, Andrew Parsons 
(BRA).

STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIPS

• The IOC – IR Committee continued to pursue working 
opportunities with various organisations that would realise BWF’s 
vision of “making badminton a leading global support accessible 
to all – giving every child a chance to play for life’.  

• International School Sports Federation

• Peace and Sport

• Confederation of Mediterranean Badminton

• United Nations High Commissioner for Refugees 

• The Association For International Sport for All 

• Special Olympics International

• Francophone League

• Gulf Cooperation Council

COMMITTEE MEMBERS
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MARKETING COMMITTEE

HIGHLIGHTS 2017

• Infront Sports & Media managed the sponsorship rights of the 
two Major Events in 2017 prior to the start of the full extent of the 
BWF / Infront media rights and sponsorship rights relationship 
spanning both Major Events and the all new BWF World Tour in 
2018.

• Significantly, at the end of 2017, BWF signed its largest sponsorship 
relationship in the history of the Federation with HSBC.  The global 
banking group will have a corporate presence across BWF’s entire 
suite of events – title-sponsoring the new HSBC BWF World Tour 
from 2018 and the HSBC BWF World Tour Finals for the next four 
years as well as becoming Premier Sponsor for the BWF Major 
Events (World Championships, Sudirman Cup and Thomas & 
Uber Cup Finals).  HSBC has also been named as BWF Global 
Development Partner, working with the world-governing body to 
grow badminton globally.

• The third and fourth TOTAL title-sponsored Major Event took place 
successfully in Gold Coast, Australia in May 2017 – the TOTAL 
BWF Sudirman Cup 2017 and in Glasgow, Scotland in August 
2017 – the TOTAL BWF World Championships 2017.

• Meanwhile it was a consolidated year with our current agency 
partners - IMG Media, ESG and Nielsen Sports, with 2017 being 
the last year of the BWF relationship with both IMG Media and 
ESG.

• The fourth and last DUBAI sponsored BWF World Superseries 
Finals took place successfully in Dubai, United Arab Emirates in 
December 2017, completing an amazing cycle of 4-years in Dubai.

 

COMMITTEE SCOPE OF WORK

The key focus of the Committee is to:

• Ensure that the strategic direction of the management of the 
external agencies working with the BWF is maintained at all times 
in order to continually enter in to new commercial partnerships 
to grow the properties, maintain and grow existing partnerships 

and maximize revenue opportunities with the highest levels of 
profitability.

• Develop incremental revenue models for the BWF to grow the 
sport commercially.

• Manage and further develop “Brand Badminton” in clearly defined 
partnerships with our Continental Confederations, Member 
Associations and with our Host Cities.  

2017 IN REVIEW

This was the year BWF started the partnership with Infront through 
our Major Events, with ESG finishing the last year of the BWF World 
Superseries cycle. Both BWF and Infront look to a successful 
partnership in the delivery of all commercial operations in 2018.

IMG MEDIA & PRODUCTION

• 2017 was the fourth and last year of the current relationship 
with IMG Media who delivered the BWF television broadcast 
relationships and who managed our television production 
capabilities.

• IMG Media consistently delivered over 600 million households of 
television viewers for the BWF event broadcasts throughout 2017.

• In 2017 IMG produced 655 hours of live coverage of BWF 
badminton events.

• By the end of the year, the 208th episode of the weekly Badminton 
Unlimited magazine show was produced and aired to its diverse 
international audiences.

ESG

• In 2017, ESG continued to manage the relationship with MetLife 
as the title sponsor of the BWF World Superseries.

• 2017 concluded our partnership with ESG.

MARKETING
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INFRONT SPORTS & MEDIA

• In 2017, Infront began their management of the relationship with 
Total Oil as the title sponsor of the BWF Major Events – specifically 
Sudirman Cup and World Championships.

• Infront handled all commercial and media rights for our Major 
Events this year.

• From 2018, Infront will handle all commercial and media rights for 
all our events – both Major Events and World Tour.

• Infront was instrumental in delivering the HSBC commercial 
partnership to BWF, which was concluded and signed in December 
2017 after 18 months of negotiation.

NIELSEN SPORTS

• Nielsen Sports delivered both the Broadcast Analysis Report and 
Media Evaluation reports for all BWF Major Events, BWF World 
Superseries and selected Grand Prix Gold events.

• Data generated by Nielsen Sports assist our partners and hosts in 
understanding the values of their product and how to improve or 
better the outcomes for future events.

• These valuations provide strategic data to both IMG and ESG in 
terms of growing the overall commercial portfolio.

CONTINENTAL CONFEDERATION 
MARKETING GRANTS

• In 2017, all Continental Confederations received their marketing 
grants against effectively developed and executed marketing 
plans
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COMMUNICATIONS & MEDIA COMMITTEE

HIGHLIGHTS 2017

• In March, BWF released a global announcement of its new World 
Tour, featuring six levels of events, with the top four events having 
million-dollar prize money. 

• During the Dubai World Superseries Finals in December 2017, the 
BWF Facebook page grew by another 80,000 to 380,000 followers 
representing a 26% increase over the year.

• Throughout 2017 short-form video content continued to play an 
important role in growing BadmintonWorld.TV where in excess of 
1.45 billion minutes of content were viewed.

• Shankai Sports in China continued to develop our social-media 
presence in China in 2017 with bespoke content for our China 
audience.

COMMITTEE SCOPE OF WORK

The key focus of the Committee is to:

• Ensure regular and accurate communication of all matters in the 
sport of badminton through the development of communications 
tools to badminton fans, Member Associations, badminton 
players, the sports institutional world, the media.

• In addition, to educate three key groups on all communications 
matters BWF Council members, staff and Member Associations.

• Oversee the development / maintenance of key BWF websites as 
a communications tool.

• Develop strong media and public relations to increase exposure 
for the BWF and the sport in the print media.

• Incorporate new media and streaming strategies of BWF activities 
and events.

2017 IN REVIEW

Following a successful Olympic year, 2017 was mostly business 
as usual and allowed the communications department to focus on 
delivering content, in various formats, on diverse areas and to map out 
strategies for the future.

The communications team attended all MetLife BWF World 
Superseries events in 2017 as well as the TOTAL BWF World 
Championships (Glasgow, Scotland), the TOTAL Sudirman Cup (Gold 
Coast, Australia), the Blibli.com YONEX-SUNRISE BWF World Junior 
Championships (Yogyakarta, Indonesia) and the BWF Para-Badminton 
World Championships (Ulsan, Korea) and produced 369 articles and 
hundreds of posts on social media to engage fans globally.  

COMMUNICATIONS INITIATIVES TO THE 
SPORTS INSTITUTIONAL WORLD

• The Shuttle World Newsletter was produced every quarter in 2017 
and delivered to its audience.

• BWF had a year-long relationship with “Around the Rings”, 
delivering news and BWF brand and event messages via the most 
influential internet presence on the Olympic Games.

• BWF continued its strong relationship with “Inside the Games” in 
2017.  

BWF DIGITAL PLATFORMS

• 2017 saw the production of bespoke websites for two BWF 
Major Events – the BWF Sudirman Cup and the BWF World 
Championships. These sat alongside existing BWF websites 
which include a Corporate site, a Fan site, a World Superseries 
site and a dedicated Chinese language Fan site. 

At year-end, the World Superseries site was closed and a World 
Tour site was unveiled in early January 2018 in tandem with the 
announcement of the HSBC BWF World Tour. This is now the 
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platform of choice for news and other information about the World 
Tour, including the HSBC Race to Guangzhou which will track players’ 
progress towards the year-end finals in the Chinese city.

DIGITAL

• Facebook, Twitter and YouTube (BadmintonWorld.TV) continued 
to be the focus of BWF’s social media thrust in 2017.

• Towards the end of 2017, the BWF reached more than 380,000 
regular followers on its Facebook page, zeroing in on its next 
major milestone: 400,000 followers.

• All social media platforms are growing steadily.

• The continued use of new, daily short clips delivered straight 
from our events to the YouTube channel provided some exciting 
results, with clips now generating in excess of 1.45 billion minutes 
of content viewed.

CHINA COMMUNICATIONS PROJECT

• The BWF-appointed agency in China, Shankai Sports, manages all 
social media in that country. 

• Shankai Sports is active across We Chat, Weibo and YuoKu 
on a daily basis delivering specific China-focused content, 
differentiated from the content of Western social media platforms. 
In 2018, BWF will evaluate its Chinese platform and content to 
determine how best to enhance and optimise these elements of 
its communications portfolio.

LOOKING FORWARD TO 2018

• In November, the BWF Council approved a significant budget to 
pursue a cutting-edge digital strategy to enhance badminton’s 
fan engagement experience. The aim is to create a mix of digital 
channels, tools and activities to provide exciting engagement with 
the sport’s fan base all-year round. It will focus on star players and 
tournaments and will be designed to support BWF’s commercial 
activities and increase the value of badminton not only to fans but 
to the sport’s commercial stakeholders as well.
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ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE

HIGHLIGHTS 2017

• The BWF moved its headquarters to a new premise in Naza 
Tower in Kuala Lumpur City Centre to extend the office space and 
facilities to accommodate an expanding workforce.

• The Constitution & Ethics Working Group undertook a major 
review of the Code of Ethics, Codes of Conduct and rules 
governing Judicial Procedures and amendment were approved 
in March by the Council, coming into effect on 1 June 2017. The 
process of review of all regulations culminated in a restructure 
and publication of the BWF Statutes on the corporate website. 

• At the 2017 AGM held in Gold Coast, The BWF welcomed seven 
new members to the BWF Council for the term 2017 – 2021.  In 
addition, 11 BWF Council members were re-elected.

• The BWF has signed a host country agreement with the Malaysian 
government for an International Organization (IO) status. This IO 
status affords the BWF with some privileges as an International 
Federation based in Malaysia including exemption of taxes.

COMMITTEE SCOPE OF WORK

The key objectives of the Committee are to:

• Regularly review the BWF Statues, Guidelines for Council, Code of 
Ethics, Judicial Procedures and Anti-Doping Regulations.

• Ensure structures and process for good governance are in place 
to ensure compliance with the Constitution.

• Oversee and guide on Membership issues and to protect the 
autonomy of the sport at a national level in line with the Olympic 
Charter.

• Ensure effective and clear governance and collaboration 
structures between the BWF and Continental Confederations 
including ensuring transparency and accountability.

2017 IN REVIEW

GOVERNANCE AND INTEGRITY

Good governance and integrity of badminton remained key priority 
areas to ensure that BWF and all bodies within it follow good 
governance practices and to also ensure that badminton as a sport 
remains clean and fair.  

In early 2017, the BWF Constitution and Ethics Working Group 
continued its work on reviewing various rules and regulations 
related to governance, ethics and judicial processes. This resulted in 
amendments to the Code of Ethics, Codes of Conduct and Judicial 
Procedures and these were approved by Council in March and came 
into effect on 1 June 2017.

One of the main outcomes of these new rules was that all ethics 
related clauses from across BWF regulations were incorporated into 
the amended Code of Ethics. 

The second major outcome was the inclusion of more external 
and independent expertise into the judicial system – this included 
a Referral Officer role. The BWF Referral Officer is an external and 
independent lawyer who reviews case files and decides whether or 
not the case is referred to a hearing panel for judgement. If a case 
is referred, a three person independent and external panel of three 
persons will judge the case.

External and independent expertise have been used since 2009 
to judge doping cases, however, following the review of the judicial 
procedures, both doping and ethics-related cases are now being heard 
by external experts. 

In January 2018, the BWF published the restructured BWF Statutes 
-  an electronic version of the BWF rules in five Chapters which cover 
governance, ethics and judicial rules as well as the sport’s technical 
regulations and Laws of Badminton.

MEMBERS FORUM AND AGM

• The election of a new BWF Council took place at the 2017 
AGM hosted on 20 May at The Star Gold Coast Hotel in Gold 
Coast, Australia and attended by delegates from 130 Member 
Associations.

• After the votes were counted, seven new members were 
welcomed to the BWF Council, joining 11 incumbents who were 
re-elected for another four years along with BWF President, 
Deputy President and Vice-President Para-Badminton who were 
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re-elected unopposed. A record seven woman, representing four 
of five continental confederations were elected as BWF Council 
members.

• The Council election candidates were presented to the 
membership at the 7th edition of the BWF Member’s Forum 
which was held the day before the AGM. Among the speakers at 
the Forum were sporting personalities and administrators from 
Australia. 

MEMBERSHIP

• The BWF membership continued to grow with the admission 
of two new Members - one from Africa (Burkina Faso) and one 
from Pan America (Bolivia).   Associate Member Saudi Badminton 
Committee became  a full Member of the BWF.

INTEGRITY UNIT

• The scope of work of the BWF Integrity Unit is well defined 
and continued to focus on anti-doping and anti-match fixing 
through education, the “i am badminton” awareness campaign, 
a comprehensive and an ongoing testing and monitoring 
programme and engaging the services of an investigator to gather 
information on potential match fixing in the sport.

Chen Long and Hendra Setiawan who were noted as role models 
through their conduct both on and off court were named as the newest 
Integrity Ambassadors in 2017 to promote “clean and fair” badminton. 

The overall objective is to continue to maintain integrity through 
the application of good sports values by all those participating in 
badminton. Every athlete has the right to compete in fair and clean 
sport.  

AWARDS

The Council approved a range of awards proposed by the Awards 
Commission and Administration Committee. The list of awards and 
recipients are detailed in other parts of this annual report.
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PLAYER OF THE YEAR AWARDS 2017

Indonesia’s Marcus Fernaldi Gideon/Kevin Sanjaya Sukamuljo and 
China’s Chen Qingchen walked away with the Player of the Year 
honours in the male and female category respectively at the Players’ 
Reception and Gala Dinner in Dubai on the eve of the Dubai World 
Superseries Finals.

The Indonesians, winners of six TOTAL BWF World Superseries titles 
in 2017, won the vote of the Awards Commission ahead of three 
other nominees – Denmark’s Viktor Axelsen, India’s Kidambi Srikanth 
and China’s Zheng Siwei. The awards recognise the year’s most 
outstanding player(s) of 2017.

Chen Qingchen, World Champion in women’s doubles and winner of 
five TOTAL BWF World Superseries, won the Female Player of the 
Year award over five other nominees – compatriot Huang Yaqiong, 
Chinese Taipei’s Tai Tzu Ying, India’s Pusarla V Sindhu, Japan’s Akane 
Yamaguchi and Korea’s Lee So Hee.

China’s contingent savoured another recognition as Chen Yufei won 
the Eddy Choong Award for Most Promising Player of the Year. Chen, 
bronze medallist at the TOTAL BWF World Championships, won the 
nod of the Awards Commission over Indonesia’s Apriyani Rahayu 
and Gregoria Mariska Tunjung; India’s Satwiksairaj Rankireddy and 
Malaysia’s Lee Zii Jia.

Japan’s women’s doubles pair Yuki Fukushima and Sayaka Hirota 
were named the Most Improved Player of the Year, which is a special 
direct award from the Awards Commission.
The two young Japanese players were completely surprised when 
their names were announced and took a while to come to terms with 
it.

Korea’s Kim Jungjun won the Male Para-Badminton Player of the Year 
award, while Female Para-Badminton Player of the Year award went to 
Thailand’s Amnouy Wetwithan.

ADMINISTRATION AWARDS 2017

MERITORIUS SERVICE MEDAL

WILFRIED JORRES (GER) 
Wilfried Jorres was a national umpire for 25 years (1991 – 2016) 
and Referee for 11 years (2005-2016) . He has been actively involved 
in the North Rhine Westphalia Badminton Association since 1996 
serving in various capacities including that of the Chair of the Umpires 
Committee. He has received several awards from the North Rhine 
Westphalia Badminton Association including the Pin of Honour from 
the German Badminton Association. 

PAUL-ANDRE TRAMIER (FRA)
Paul Andre Tramier was the Treasurer of the French BA from 1984 to 
1996 and from 1996 – 2012, he served as the President. Thereafter 
he was elected as President of the National Committee for Sport 
Development from 2012 – 2016. He has been a member of the French 
Olympic Committee since 2009 and a member of the French Anti-
Doping Committee since 2015. 

JEAN-MARC POCHOLLE (FRA) 
Jean-Marc was a founding member of 2 regional badminton clubs 
in 1988 and 1990 respectively.  He was the national coach of the 
French BA from 1996 until his appointment as the Chief Executive of 
the French BA in 1999 a position he held until 2013. He received the 
Silver Federal Merit from the French BA in 2013 and the Gold Medal 
for Youth and Sports and Community involvement from the French 
Sports Ministry in 2015. 

VILLE LANG (FIN) 
Ville Lang was a member of the Finnish junior national team 
from 1999 – 2003 and between 2004 to 2016, he has capped 48 
international appearance representing Finland. He was 10 times the 
Finnish Champion and winner of 15 international championships. He 
participated in two Olympic Games – 2008 and 2012. He received the 
Gold Medal of Player award from Badminton Finland in 2014. 

VICTOR SHVACHKO (UKR) 
Victor was a member of the Ukraine and USSE national team from 
1966 – 1982. He was 23 times national champion in singles, doubles 
and team championships. He was chief coach of the national team 
of Ukraine and USSR from 1979 – 1991.  He was President of the 
Badminton Federation of Ukraine since 1991.  Victor has received 
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several awards from the Ministry of Youth and Sports in Ukraine and 
the National Olympic Committee. 

JOSEPH CLARKE (JAM) 
Joseph Clarke has been involved in badminton as a player, coach, umpire, 
Referee and administrator at the national, Continental and International 
level. He was Jamaica Player of the Year in 1998 and 1999, first Pan-
Am Accredited Umpire and first and only BWF Certificated Umpire.  
He was President of the Jamaica BA from 2001- 2003, President of 
Carebaco from 2002 to 2005, Executive Member of Badminton Pan-Am 
Confederation and BWF Council Member 2001 – 2003. 

BRIAN BACH MOESGAARD (DEN) 
Brian has been involved with badminton since his first appointment as 
Events Manager of Badminton Denmark and subsequently as Director 
of Events since 2008 until present.  He has successfully worked on the 
presentation of events with new experience for television audience, 
spectators and players which had inspired many. 

SOREN ESPERSEN (DEN)
Soren has been coaching and managing the Junior Elite players in 
Badminton Sjaelland since 1979.  From 1994 – 2009, he was put in 
charge of the development of the national junior squad. Thanks to his 
leadership, Badminton Denmark has produce many talented juniors 
which have become top players in the world of badminton.  Soren 
received the Honorary Life Member from Badminton Denmark in 2008. 

PETER GANES (DEN)
Peter was a BWF accredited umpire since 1991 and certificated 

umpire in 1992. He officiated at the Olympics Finals in Sydney and 
Athens before retiring in 2006. Peter was a Badminton Europe Umpire 
Assessor and later as BWF Umpire Assessor until 2015. 

ELIZEU PAULO MACHADO (BRA)
Elizeu was the Sports Director of the Parana State Badminton 
Federation from 1996 – 2005 and President from 2006 – 2013. He 
was Vice-President of the Brazilian Badminton Federation from 2012 
– 2013.  And coordinator of the Shuttle Time Brazil and tutor since 
2015 and numerous international badminton tournaments between 
2010 – 2017.  He was head of the Brazilian Badminton team to the 
Pan-Am Games in Mexico in 2011. 

DINGUISHED SERVICE MEDAL

• Miguel Diaz (CUB)

• Thomas Ritchie Campbell (SCO)

• Nahathai Somprachum (THA)

• Guenter Kluetzke (GER)

CERTIFICATE OF COMMENDATION

• KYK Shopping S.A 
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FINANCE COMMITTEE

HIGHLIGHTS 2017

• The Committee continued its oversight role of the financial control 
systems, accounting and reporting functions, audit processes 
and investments policy. 

• Overall a very good year with higher than expected commercial 
revenues. Total income for the year was US$23,580,579 which 
includes the additional share of the 2016 Rio Olympic income of 
US$1.9 million. 

• Prudent spending against the budget resulted in a total expenditure 
for the year of US$20,424,663.

• Surplus for the year was US$3,155,916, against a budget 
expectation of a deficit of US$ 4.26 million.

• The above meant a reserve carried forward as at 31 December 
2017 of US$37 million, however with Council during 2017 deciding 
a significant investment in Continental Confederation human 
resources to service the BWF Membership with an allocation of 
the reserves of US$ 6 million over the next 6 years.

COMMITTEE SCOPE OF WORK

• Ensure all statutory and legal obligations related to finance are 
fulfilled within the time frame stipulated by authorities. 

• Ensure that adequate procedures and financial controls are 
applied to all accounting functions. 

• Oversee and ensure that full and accurate financial accounts are 
maintained to reflect the true and accurate state of affairs of the 
Federation. 

• Present timely and accurate financial information to Council as 
appropriate to facilitate management decisions. 

• Assist and provide financial guidelines in the implementation 
of any activity of the Federation transferred to the Continental 
Confederations.  Ensure proper accountability of any or all 
resources provided by the Federation to the Continental 

Confederations. 

2017 IN REVIEW

2017 was the final year of the four year cycle of the BWF World 
Superseries and we have now moved into a new partnership with the 
HSBC BWF World Tour cycle starting in January 2018.  The partnership 
with InFront Sports & Media initiated in 2017, meant the BWF received 
additional income for 2017.

Our relationship with IMG Media concluded in December 2017, and 
the revenues from broadcast and media rights for the Major Events in 
2017 was better than expected.

Overall, the actual performance for the year compared favourably 
against the budget. The BWF in its 2017 budget expected a deficit 
of US$4.26 million however the final result was a surplus of US$3.16 
million. The differences between budget and actual was largely due to:

• Higher commercial revenues on BWF Major Events than expected;

• The last tranche of the 2016 Rio Olympic income.

• Prudent spending in each of the major areas of activity.

The final result at the end of the financial year was that BWF had a 
positive reserve of US$37 million carried forward.

EXPENDITURE

Although we had a significant budget to cover all programmes and 
activities, there was prudent spending overall and the result was that 
programmes were well within budget.  During the past year, BWF 
continued to support and invest in a number of major areas of our 
work and these related to:

• Development - BWF continued to invest in this important area 
in cooperation with the five Continental Confederations. There 
was quite a substantial financial support in 2017 of USD$3.57 
million distributed across the various programmes within the five 
Continental Confederations.

• Events – including travel grants for participants to the BWF World 
Junior Championships and the Instant Review System;

• Para-Badminton – para-badminton development and the Para-
Badminton World Championships;

• Membership - Support for Members to participate in the annual 
Members Forum and AGM;

• BWF’s new digital platforms – launching new websites, 
enhancing existing websites and further development on an 
IT administration system. Going forward the BWF Council has 
also provided significant investment funding to develop new 
digital communication technology, hereunder a new BWF App 
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and generating an upgraded IT/Data infrastructure to service the 
future needs of the new digital world. 

• Integrity – significant investment in the anti-doping programme 
and investment in an integrity database management system and 
new technology to help with investigations around the integrity of 
matches.

 

AUDITOR

BDO Malaysia was confirmed by the AGM as the auditors for 2017. 
The audit process for this second year with BDO Malaysia has gone 
smoothly.

CURRENCY RISK

Currency fluctuations is a continuing factor in our business and taking 
steps to minimize currency risk requires on-going monitoring. 

FORECAST

The increased revenues through more robust commercial models and 
better broadcast rights agreements has positioned the BWF well for 
the medium term future. This, together with prudent spending places 
the BWF at the end of the financial year in a strong financial situation 
and with a reserve of a number of years operating expenses, which 
has continued to be our goal.

COMMITMENT TO DEVELOPMENT

The BWF Council agreed in November 2017 to invest US$6 million 
over the next six years to enhance the capacity of the Continental 
Confederations to deliver more and better development programmes 
regionally and essentially service the BWF Membership in a better way. 
The figure is specifically targeting the increase of human resources 
in each of the confederations. The exact areas for recruitment have 
been discussed with each Continental Confederation and the terms 
and conditions of accessing this funding are being finalised. 

FINANCE COMMITTEE

Dato’ Wira Lim Teong Kiat – Chair
Chipo Zumburani – Deputy Chair
David Cabello 
Paul Kurzo
Nigel Skelt
Anton Subowo
Peter Tarcala
Etienne Thobois
Vishu Tolan
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BADMINTON WORLD FEDERATION
(Registered in Malaysia)

STATEMENT OF COUNCIL RESPONSIBILITIES

For each financial year, the Constitution of the Federation requires the financial statements which give a true and fair view of the financial position 
of the Federation and of its financial performance and cash flows for that period to be prepared. In preparing those financial statements, the 
Council has decided to:

• select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;

• make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

• state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial 
statements; and

• prepare the financial statements on the basis that the Federation shall not be dissolved.

 
The Council has general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to it to safeguard the assets of the Federation and to prevent 
and detect fraud and other irregularities.
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BADMINTON WORLD FEDERATION
(Registered in Malaysia)

STATEMENT BY THE COUNCIL

We, Poul-Erik Hoyer and Dato’ Wira Lim Teong Kiat, being two of the members of the Council, do hereby state that, in the opinion of the Council, 
the financial statements set out on pages 68 to 85 are drawn up in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International 
Financial Reporting Standards, and the requirements of the Constitution of the Federation so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position 
of the Federation as at 31 December 2017 and of the financial performance and cash flows of the Federation for the financial year then ended.

On behalf of the Council,

Poul-Erik Høyer     Dato’ Wira Lim Teong Kiat
President      Finance Committee Chair

Kuala Lumpur
16 March 2018

 



BWF ANNUAL REPORT 201766

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
BADMINTON WORLD FEDERATION
(Registered in Malaysia)

Report on Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Badminton World Federation, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 
2017 of the Federation, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of recognised gains and losses and 
statement of cash flows of the Federation for the financial year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies, as set out on pages 68 to 85.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Federation as at 31 December 2017, 
and of its financial performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards 
(“MFRSs”), International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and the requirements of the Constitution of the Federation.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards on Auditing (“ISAs”). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our 
report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities

We are independent of the Federation in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics, Conduct and Practice) of the Malaysian Institute 
of Accountants (“By-Laws”) and the international Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA 
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Council of the Federation is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual 
report but does not include the financial statements of the Federation and our auditors’ report thereon. The annual report is expected to be made 
available to us after the date of this auditors’ report.

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Federation does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Federation, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the annual report is materially inconsistent with the financial statements of the Federation or our knowledge obtained in the audit 
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to the 
Council of the Federation.

Responsibilities of the Council for the Financial Statements

The Council of the Federation is responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Federation that give a true and fair view in accordance 
with MFRSs, IFRSs and the requirements of the Constitution of the Federation. The Council is also responsible for such internal control as the 
Council determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements of the Federation that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Federation as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and ISAs will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

(a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Federation, whether due to fraud or error,  
 design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide  
 a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,  
 as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

(b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the  
 circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control of the Federation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
BADMINTON WORLD FEDERATION (continued)
(Registered in Malaysia)

Auditors’ Responsibilities for Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also (continued):

(c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures  
 made by the Council.

(d) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the Federation, including the disclosures, and  
 whether the financial statements of the Federation represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair  
 presentation.

We communicate with the Council regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Council with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards.

Other Matters
  
This report is made solely to the members of the Federation, as a body and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other 
person for the content of this report.

BDO
AF : 0206
Chartered Accountants
 
Kuala Lumpur 
16 March 2018
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BADMINTON WORLD FEDERATION
(Registered in Malaysia)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2017 2016

Note USD USD

GROSS INCOME

BWF tournaments and open events 3 22,856,234 28,953,940

Olympic development grants 4 89,126 85,673

Subscriptions 5(a) 224,400 217,000

Creative sports award 5(a) - 250,000

International Paralympic Committee (“IPC”) sport grants 5(a) 26,116 -

Other income 5(b) 259,447 154,533

TOTAL GROSS INCOME 23,455,323 29,661,146

EXPENDITURE

Events

BWF tournaments and open events 10,167,013 9,761,339

Development

Continental grants 6 3,531,407 3,426,804

Continental Confederation workshop 40,755 21,229

Educational activities 7 219,018 162,187

Other development activities 8 496,112 427,638

Para-Badminton development 172,472 62,881

4,459,764 4,100,739

International Olympic Committee & International Relations 9 158 93,246

Marketing 10 271,996 169,970

Communication 11 83,138 79,071

Administration 12 9,858 7,576

Integrity 13 472,036 262,777

Representation / Ad-hoc Meeting Committee, Commission and Staff Travel 290,585 251,211
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BADMINTON WORLD FEDERATION
(Registered in Malaysia)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 (continued)

2017 2016

Note USD USD

EXPENDITURE (continued)

Governance

Annual general meeting 274,190 172,909

BWF Members’ forum and gala dinner 170,841 97,398

Council, athlete commission and disciplinary committee 14 859,796 510,752

1,304,827 781,059

General and Administrative Expenses 15 2,721,929 1,975,130

Professional and Other Fees

Insurance 87,429 93,518

Legal and professional charges 17 58,560 128,523

Audit fee 22,000 21,000

Bad debts written off 6,275 -

Depreciation on equipment 19 80,769 19,974

Impairment loss on trade receivables 20(d) 395,432 -

Net unrealised losses in currency exchange - 124,102

Net realised losses in currency exchange - 45,900

650,465 433,017

Finance Costs 25,340 22,785

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 20,457,109 17,937,920

OPERATING SURPLUS 2,998,214 11,723,226

Gain on disposal of equipment 951 -

Interest income 18 125,256 120,515

Late payment interest - 2,250

Net unrealised gain in currency exchange 59,868 -

186,075 122,765

SURPLUS BEFORE TAXATION 3,184,289 11,845,991

Taxation 27 (28,373) (29,491)

TOTAL SURPLUS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 3,155,916 11,816,500

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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BADMINTON WORLD FEDERATION
(Registered in Malaysia)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017

2017 2016

Note USD USD

ASSETS

Non-current asset

Equipment 19 140,603 17,533

Current assets

Trade and other receivables 20 1,942,805 2,287,492

Cash and bank balances 21 40,893,745 36,759,717

42,836,550 39,047,209

TOTAL ASSETS 42,977,153 39,064,742

FUNDS AND LIABILITIES

Funds

Accumulated surplus 22 36,973,411 33,817,495

F S Coaching fund 23 10,000 10,000

World Junior Championships fund 24 317,966 317,966

Dr. Kang Young Joong’s fund 25 239,783 271,708

37,541,160 34,417,169

Current liabilities

Other payables and accruals 26 5,405,993 4,619,573

Current tax liabilities 30,000 28,000

5,435,993 4,647,573

TOTAL FUNDS AND LIABILITIES 42,977,153 39,064,742

STATEMENT OF RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

The Federation has no recognised gains and losses other than the income and expenditure recognised for the year.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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BADMINTON WORLD FEDERATION
(Registered in Malaysia)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

2017 2016

Note USD USD

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Surplus before taxation 3,184,289 11,845,991

Adjustments for:

Bad debts written off 6,275 -

Depreciation on equipment 19 80,769 19,974

Gain on disposal of equipment (951) -

Impairment loss on trade receivables 20(d) 395,432 -

Interest income 18 (125,256) (120,515)

Net unrealised (gain)/losses in currency exchange (59,868) 124,102

Operating profit before changes in working capital 3,480,690 11,869,552

Trade and other receivables (20,851) (267,616)

Other payables and accruals 786,420 (2,821,878)

Cash generated from operations 4,246,259 8,780,058

Tax paid (26,373) (31,491)

Net cash from operating activities 4,219,886 8,748,567

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of equipment 19 (204,356) (13,096)

Placements of fixed deposits placed with licensed banks with original maturity of more 
than three (3) months

(4,679,807) (2,996,521)

Proceeds from disposal of equipment 1,468 -

Utilisation of Dr. Kang Young Joong’s fund (31,925) (32,953)

Interest received 125,256 120,515

Net cash used in investing activities (4,789,364) (2,922,055)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (569,478) 5,826,512

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 23,699 (33,581)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial year 22,948,798 17,155,867

Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year 21(f) 22,403,019 22,948,798

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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BADMINTON WORLD FEDERATION
(Registered in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 DECEMBER 2017

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Badminton World Federation is a Federation registered under the Societies Act, 1966 and domiciled in Malaysia. The principal place of 
business and registered office of the Federation are located at Unit No. 1, Level 29, Naza Tower, No. 10, Persiaran KLCC, 50088 Kuala 
Lumpur.

The principal activities of the Federation are administrating, promoting, developing and popularising the sport of Badminton throughout 
the world.

The financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2017 were authorised by the Council on 16 March 2018.
 
 
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 

The financial statements of the Federation have been prepared in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRSs”), 
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) and the requirements of the Constitution of the Federation.

The financial statements of the Federation have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as otherwise stated in the 
financial statements.

The financial statements are presented in US Dollar (“USD”), which is also the functional currency of the Federation.

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except for the effects of adoption of new MFRSs 
during the financial year. The new MFRSs and amendments to MFRSs adopted during the financial year are set out in Note 30 to the 
financial statements.

3. BWF TOURNAMENTS AND OPEN EVENTS

2017 2016

USD USD

BWF tournaments 20,951,066 13,553,940

Olympic income 1,905,168 15,400,000

22,856,234 28,953,940

 (a) Tournaments income is recognised when the respective tournaments are held. 

 (b) Olympic income is recognised on an accrual basis.  

4. OLYMPIC DEVELOPMENT GRANTS

2017 2016

USD USD

Olympic solidarity fund 19,126 15,673

International Federation Development Fund 70,000 70,000

89,126 85,673

 Olympic solidarity fund and International Federation Development Fund are recognised on an accrual basis.
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5. SUBSCRIPTIONS, CREATIVE SPORTS AWARDS, INTERNATIONAL PARALYMPIC COMMITTEE (“IPC”) SPORT GRANTS AND 
 OTHER INCOME

 (a) Subscriptions, creative sports awards and IPC sport grants income are recognised on an accrual basis. 

 (b) Other income consists mainly of income earned from the equipment approval scheme and grant from the United Nations and 
  are recognised on an accrual basis.

6. CONTINENTAL GRANTS

2017 2016

USD USD

Base level 1,359,746 1,295,000

Programme funding 552,847 604,073

Capacity building 276,904 56,500

Equipment 207,376 274,311

Player development 420,000 350,000

Tournament 180,000 172,000

Thomas and Uber Cup Qualifying - 252,500

Technical official special assistance 71,000 40,537

Marketing 74,000 79,500

Women In Badminton 90,000 54,083

Para-Badminton development 99,207 57,000

Returns of subscription 200,327 191,300

3,531,407 3,426,804

Continental development grant relates to grants given to the five Continental Federations to support the development of badminton in 
those regions as follows:

2017 2016

USD USD

Badminton Confederation of Africa 622,939 695,510

Badminton Asia Confederation 768,427 736,698

Badminton Europe 917,591 896,476

Oceania Badminton Confederation 463,614 476,205

Badminton Pan American Confederation 758,836 621,915

3,531,407 3,426,804

7. EDUCATIONAL ACTIVITIES

2017 2016

USD USD

Coaches education 111,692 69,605

Olympic solidarity courses 37,478 14,740

Shuttle time 69,848 77,002

University badminton - 840

219,018 162,187
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8. OTHER DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES

2017 2016

USD USD

Research projects/Sports science 117,492 100,700

Capacity building - membership development 174,025 119,172

Continental special project 193,082 82,819

Special development for World Junior Championship 10,000 10,000

Outdoor shuttlecocks development project 1,513 114,947

496,112 427,638

9. INTERNATIONAL OLYMPIC COMMITTEE & INTERNATIONAL RELATIONS

2017 2016

USD USD

Peace in sports - 490

Multi sports events support 158 420

Rio legacy project - 92,336

158 93,246

10. MARKETING

2017 2016

USD USD

BWF branding 8,728 46

Report and analysis 41,600 38,500

Media production/Public relations support 144,683 48,669

China market initiative 76,985 62,000

BWF trademark - 755

Digital media archive - 20,000

271,996 169,970

11. COMMUNICATION

2017 2016

USD USD

Institutional communication plan 32,945 48,531

Institutional media subscription 10,803 10,723

Media relation/Media player education - 14,766

Communication newsletter 4,632 5,051

Photographer 34,758 -

83,138 79,071
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12. ADMINISTRATION

2017 2016

USD USD

Awards 9,858 7,576

13. INTEGRITY

2017 2016

USD USD

Anti-Doping 292,940 195,744

Investigation and legal advice 104,833 42,306

Player integrity education 74,263 24,727

472,036 262,777

14. COUNCIL, ATHLETE COMMISSION AND DISCIPLINARY COMMITTEE

2017 2016

USD USD

Honorarium to President 62,500 -

Council meeting 757,850 469,442

Athlete commission 39,446 28,586

Disciplinary committee - 12,724

859,796 510,752

15. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The general and administrative expenses can be analysed as follows:

2017 2016

USD USD

Staff costs (Note 16) 1,817,413 1,618,666

Other staff costs 47,856 18,093

Staff travelling 18,056 846

Office general administrative 54,890 67,605

Other office, property and utilities costs 405,743 17,039

Office rental 88,400 56,309

Computer consumables, network maintenance and web project 289,571 196,572

2,721,929 1,975,130
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16. STAFF COSTS
           Number of employees

2017 2016

Full time 30 28

2017 2016

USD USD

Employee costs

Wages and salaries 1,766,985 1,572,991

Social security contribution 2,513 2,176

Employees’ provident fund 47,915 43,499

1,817,413 1,618,666

17. LEGAL AND PROFESSIONAL CHARGES

2017 2016

USD USD

Legal fees 11,406 9,108

Tax consult fees 2,106 2,300

Other professional fees 45,048 117,115

58,560 128,523

18. INTEREST INCOME

2017

Dr. Kang Young 
Joong’s Fund

World Junior 
Championships 

Fund Others Total

USD USD USD USD

2017

Bank interest - - 5,330 5,330

Fixed deposit interest 4,075 4,769 111,082 119,926

4,075 4,769 116,412 125,256

2016

Bank interest - - 233 233

Fixed deposit interest 3,047 3,180 114,055 120,282

3,047 3,180 114,288 120,515

 Interest income is recognised as it accrues, using the effective interest method. 
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19. EQUIPMENT

Office furniture 
and office 
equipment

 Computer 
equipment 

and software Total

USD USD USD

Cost

Balance as at 1 January 2016 29,240 186,805 216,045

Additions - 13,096 13,096

Balance as at 31 December 2016/

1 January 2017 29,240 199,901 229,141

Additions 161,773 42,583 204,356

Disposals (4,685) (1,778) (6,463)

Written off (20,970) (61,061) (82,031)

Balance as at 31 December 2017 165,358 179,645 345,003

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 1 January 2016 27,885 163,749 191,634

Charge for the financial year 838 19,136 19,974

Balance as at 31 December 2016/

1 January 2017 28,723 182,885 211,608

Charge for the financial year 53,924 26,845 80,769

Disposals (4,168) (1,778) (5,946)

Written off (20,970) (61,061) (82,031)

Balance as at 31 December 2017 57,509 146,891 204,400

Carrying amounts

Balance as at 31 December 2016 517 17,016 17,533

Balance as at 31 December 2017 107,849 32,754 140,603

Items of equipment are initially measured at cost. After initial recognition, equipment are stated at cost less any accumulated depreciation 
and any accumulated impairment losses.
 
 Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of the assets to their residual values on a straight line basis over their estimated useful 
lives. The principal annual depreciation periods are as follows:

Office furniture and office equipment         3 years
Computer equipment and software         3 years
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2017 2016

USD USD

Trade receivables 2,087,843 2,346,844

Less: Impairment loss (395,432) (755,350)

1,692,411 1,591,494

Other receivables - 584,275

Total loans and receivables 1,692,411 2,175,769

Prepayments 250,394 111,723

1,942,805 2,287,492

 (a) Trade and other receivables are classified as loans and receivables and are measured at amortised cost using the effective 
  interest method.

 (b) Normal trade credit term granted by the Federation is 30 - 60 days (2016: 30 - 60 days) from date of invoice.

 (c) The ageing analysis of trade receivables of the Federation are as follows:

2017 2016

USD USD

Neither past due nor impaired 1,436,581 1,518,647

Past due but not impaired:

1 to 60 days 1,395 -

More than 60 days 254,435 72,847

255,830 72,847

Past due and impaired 395,432 755,350

2,087,843 2,346,844

Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired

Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired relate to members and sponsorship agents with good track record 
with the Federation. Based on past experience, the Council believes that no allowance for impairment is necessary in respect 
of those balances. 

None of the Federation’s trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have been renegotiated during the financial 
year.

Receivables that are past due but not impaired

Trade receivables that are past due but not impaired relate to members and sponsorship agents for whom there is no objective 
evidence that the receivables are not fully recoverable. No impairment has been made on these amounts as the Federation is 
closely monitoring these receivables and is confident of their eventual recovery.

Receivables that are past due and impaired

Trade receivables of the Federation that are past due and impaired at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(c) The ageing analysis of trade receivables of the Federation are as follows (continued):

Individually impaired

2017 2016

USD USD

Trade receivables, gross 395,432 755,350

Less: Impairment loss (395,432) (755,350)

- -

Trade receivables that are individually determined to be impaired at the end of the reporting period relate to debtors that are 
in significant financial difficulties and have defaulted on payments. These receivables are not secured by any collateral or 
credit enhancements.

(d) Reconciliation of movements in impairment loss of trade receivables is as follows:

2017 2016

USD USD

At 1 January 755,350 755,350

Charge for the financial year 395,432 -

Written off (755,350) -

At 31 December 395,432 755,350

(e) Credit risk concentration profile

The Federation does not have any significant exposure to any individual customer or counterparty nor does it have any major 
concentration of credit risk related to any financial instruments.

(f) The foreign currency exposure profile of trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments) are as follows:

2017 2016

USD USD

Ringgit Malaysia (“MYR”) 3,784 674,551

EURO - 2,177

British Pound Sterling (“GBP”) - 1,872

United States Dollar (“USD”) 1,688,627 1,497,169

1,692,411 2,175,769

(g) Sensitivity analysis of USD against foreign currencies at the end of the reporting period, assuming that all other variables 
remain constant, are as follows:

  
2017 2016

USD USD

Increase/(Decrease)

MYR/USD - strengthen by 10% 420 34,065

- weaken by 10% (420) (34,065)

EURO/USD - strengthen by 10% - 209

- weaken by 10% - (209)

GBP/USD - strengthen by 10% - 185

- weaken by 10% - (185)
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21. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

2017 2016

USD USD

Cash and bank balances 22,107,567 22,948,798

Fixed deposits with licensed banks 18,786,178 13,810,919

40,893,745 36,759,717
  
a) Included in cash and bank balances are cash held for the F S Coaching Fund (Note 23), World Junior Championships Fund 
  (Note 24) and Dr. Kang Young Joong’s Fund (Note 25) of USD567,749 (2016: USD599,674).

(b) The weighted average effective interest rate of fixed deposits with licensed banks of the Federation is 1.79% (2016: 2.10%) 
  per annum. The average maturity period range from 1 to 12 months (2016: 6 to 12 months).

(c) The foreign currency exposure profile of cash and bank balances are as follows:

2017 2016

USD USD

MYR 461,781 512,677

Swiss Franc (“CHF”) 6,453 6,776

GBP 131,793 40,109

USD 40,293,718 36,200,155

40,893,745 36,759,717

(d) Sensitivity analysis of USD against foreign currencies at the end of the reporting period, assuming that all other variables 
  remain constant, are as follows:

2017 2016

USD USD

MYR/USD - strengthen by 10% 51,309 60,937

- weaken by 10% (51,309) (60,937)

CHF/USD - strengthen by 10% 717 673

- weaken by 10% (717) (673)

GBP/USD - strengthen by 10% 14,644 4,012

- weaken by 10% (14,644) (4,012)

(e) The Federation’s cash and bank balances and deposits are not significantly exposed to interest rate risk.

(f) For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following as at the end of the  
  reporting period:

2017 2016

USD USD

Cash and bank balances 22,107,567 22,948,798

Fixed deposits with licensed banks 18,786,178 13,810,919

40,893,745 36,759,717

Fixed deposits placed with licensed banks with original maturity of 
more than three (3) months (18,490,726) (13,810,919)

Total cash and cash equivalents 22,403,019 22,948,798
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22.  ACCUMULATED SURPLUS

2017 2016

USD USD

Balance as at 1 January 33,817,495 22,000,995

Surplus for the financial year 3,155,916 11,816,500

Balance as at 31 December 36,973,411 33,817,495

 During the financial year, the Federation committed a total of USD6.0 million from the BWF accumulated surplus to build the human 
 resources capacity of the five Continental Confederations through a programme over the next six years (from 2018 to 2023).

23. F S COACHING FUND

 The F S Coaching Fund represents a gift of USD10,000. Interest generated by this fund is to be used for coaching.

2017 2016

USD USD

At beginning and end of financial year 10,000 10,000

24. WORLD JUNIOR CHAMPIONSHIPS FUND

In 1992, the Federation received USD300,000 from the sponsors of the first World Junior Championships. Income generated by this 
fund is to be used for the championships.

2017 2016

USD USD

At beginning of financial year 317,966 317,966

Interest on fund (Note 18) 4,769 3,180

Fund distributed during the financial year (4,769) (3,180)

At end of financial year 317,966 317,966

 
25. DR. KANG YOUNG JOONG’S FUND

From 2006 to 2013, the Federation received funds from Dr. Kang Young Joong. The Fund and the income generated from this Fund 
are to be used for:

(a) assisting Continental Confederations in their development activities:
(b) assisting in developing badminton for the disabled;
(c) assisting in events development/activities and prize money; and
(d) assisting other projects as defined by Dr. Kang Young Joong.

2017 2016

USD USD

At beginning of financial year 271,708 304,661

Interest on fund (Note 18) 4,075 3,047

Fund distributed during the financial year (36,000) (36,000)

At end of financial year 239,783 271,708

 During the financial year, the Council approved the use of USD36,000 (2016: USD36,000) from Dr. Kang Young Joong’s Fund to provide 
 one-off scholarships to all medallists of the World Junior Individual Championships for Eye-Level Cups 2017.
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26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

2017 2016

USD USD

Other payables 1,272,956 1,592,180

Accruals 3,910,765 2,941,468

Deferred income 222,272 85,925

5,405,993 4,619,573

(a) Other payables and accruals are classified as other financial liabilities, and measured at amortised cost using the effective 
  interest method.

(b) Included in other payables is USD1,129,890 (2016: USD1,127,727) owing to members/players for outstanding prize monies.

(c) Deferred income of the Federation represents deferred revenue from hosting fees and subscription income of major events.

(d) The foreign currency exposure profile of trade and other payables are as follows:

2017 2016

USD USD

EURO - 6,058

USD 5,405,993 4,613,515

5,405,993 4,619,573

(e)  Sensitivity analysis for foreign currency risk is not presented as the impact is not material to the Federation. 
  

27. TAXATION

2017 2016

USD USD

Current income tax

- Current year provision 30,000 28,000

- (Over)/Under provision in prior years (1,627) 1,491

28,373 29,491

Tax exemption

In previous financial year, the Federation successfully obtained the tax exemption granted by the Ministry of Finance. The tax exemption 
is granted for the statutory level on all income of the Federation’s official activities (except for income on dividends) for a period of 2 years 
beginning year of assessment 2016 to 2017. 

On 29 November 2017, the Federation signed the Host Country Agreement with the Government of Malaysia whereby the Federation 
has been granted the status as an International Organisation and will be recognised as such once the Act has been gazetted by the 
Government. The Ministry of Sports is currently preparing the papers for gazetted in Parliament.

Once the International Organisation status has been accorded to the Federation, the privileges for tax exemption will apply for the period 
the Host Country Agreement is in effect.
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27. TAXATION (continued)

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to the surplus before taxation at the statutory income tax rate to income tax expense 
at the effective income tax rate of the Federation is as follows:

2017 2016

USD USD

Reconciliation of tax expense

Surplus before taxation 3,184,289 11,845,991

Tax calculated using Malaysia tax rates 780,722 2,958,073

Non-deductible expenses 143,799 44,144

Tax exempt income (892,706) (3,008,562)

Deferred tax assets not recognised - 2,920

Utilisation of deferred tax assets previously not recognised (2,198) -

Other items 383 31,425

30,000 28,000

(Over)/Under provision in prior years (1,627) 1,491

28,373 29,491

Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items:

2017 2016

USD USD

Unutilised tax losses 2,429,000 2,429,000

Deductible temporary differences 47 8,840

2,429,047 2,437,840

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these items because it is not probable that future taxable profits would be 
available against which the deductible temporary differences could be utilised.

The deductible temporary differences do not expire under current tax legislation.

28. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT

Leases as lessee

Future minimum lease payables under non-cancellable operating leases at the reporting date are as follows:

2017 2016

USD USD

Less than one year 253,342 94,906

Later than one year and not later than five years 380,013 -

633,355 94,906

The Federation leases its headquarters under operating leases. The leases typically run for a period of two years, with an option to 
renew the lease after that date.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Federation is exposed to financial risks arising from its use of financial instruments. The key financial risks include credit risk, 
liquidity risk, interest rate risk and foreign currency risk. 

(i) Credit risk

Cash deposits and trade receivables could give rise to credit risk which requires the loss to be recognised if a counter party 
fails to perform as contracted. The counter parties are members and sponsorship agents. It is the policy of the Federation 
to monitor the financial standing of these counter parties on an ongoing basis to ensure that the Federation is exposed to 
minimal credit risk.

Exposure to credit risk 

As at the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables is represented by the 
carrying amounts recognised in the statement of financial position. 

Information regarding credit enhancements for trade receivables is disclosed in Note 20 to the financial statements.

Credit risk concentration profile

The Federation does not have any significant exposure to any individual trade receivables or counterparty nor does it have 
any major concentration of credit risk related to any financial instruments.

(ii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Federation will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Federation’s 
exposure to liquidity risk arises principally from its various payables.

The Federation maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents and bank facilities deemed adequate by the management to 
ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the liabilities of the Federation at the end of each reporting period based 
on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations.

On demand 
or within 
one year

Undiscounted 
financial 
liabilities

USD USD

At 31 December 2017

Other payables and accruals 5,405,993 5,405,993

At 31 December 2016

Other payables and accruals 4,619,573 4,619,573

(iii) Interest rate risk

The Federation’s cash and bank balances, deposits and short term receivables and payables are not significantly exposed 
to interest rate risk. 

(iv) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument would fluctuate because of 
changes in foreign exchange rates. 

The Federation is exposed to foreign currency risk on transactions that are denominated in currencies other than its functional 
currency. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily Ringgit Malaysia, Euro, British Pound Sterling and Swiss Franc. 
The Federation does not hedge these exposures but the Council will keep this policy under review. 

The exposure and sensitivity analysis for foreign currency risk have been disclosed in Notes 20, 21 and 26 to the financial 
statements respectively.
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30. ADOPTION OF NEW MFRSs AND AMENDMENTS TO MFRSs

30.1 New MFRSs adopted during the financial year

The Federation adopted the following Standards of the MFRS Framework that were issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards 
Board (“MASB”) during the financial year:

Title          Effective Date
Amendments to MFRS 112 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses  1 January 2017
Amendments to MFRS 107 Disclosure Initiative      1 January 2017
Amendments to MFRS 12 Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2014 - 2016 Cycle  1 January 2017

Adoption of the above Standards did not have any material effect on the financial performance or position of the Federation.

30.2 New MFRSs that have been issued, but only effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

The following are Standards of the MFRS Framework that have been issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (“MASB”) 
but have not been early adopted by the Federation:

Title          Effective date
Amendments to MFRS 1 Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2014 - 2016 Cycle  1 January 2018
MFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers      1 January 2018
Clarifications to MFRS 15        1 January 2018
MFRS 9 Financial Instruments (IFRS as issued by IASB in July 2014)    1 January 2018
Amendments to MFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions 1 January 2018
Amendments to MFRS 128 Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2014 - 2016 Cycle  1 January 2018
IC Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration   1 January 2018
Amendments to MFRS 140 Transfers of Investment Property     1 January 2018
Amendments to MFRS 4 Applying MFRS 9 Financial Instruments with MFRS 4 Insurance Contracts See MFRS 4 Paragraphs 46 & 48
MFRS 16 Leases         1 January 2019
IC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments     1 January 2019
Amendments to MFRS 128 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures   1 January 2019
Amendments to MFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation   1 January 2019
Amendments to MFRS 3 Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2015 - 2017 Cycle  1 January 2019
Amendments to MFRS 11 Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2015 - 2017 Cycle  1 January 2019
Amendments to MFRS 112 Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2015 - 2017 Cycle  1 January 2019
Amendments to MFRS 123 Annual Improvements to MFRS Standards 2015 - 2017 Cycle  1 January 2019
MFRS 17 Insurance Contracts        1 January 2021
Amendments to MFRS 10 and MFRS 128 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor Deferred
and its Associates or Joint Venture

The Federation does not expect the adoption of the above Standards to have a significant impact on the financial statements, except for 
MFRS 15 and MFRS 9, which the Federation is in the process of assessing the impact of implementing these standards.
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INCOME ACCOUNTS IN USD

ACTUAL
2017
DEC

 BUDGET
2017

CM 0317 

BUDGET
2018

CM 1117 

 FORECAST 
2019

CM 1117 

OLYMPIC

Olympic Income  1,905,168  2,100,000 

IF Development Fund & Olympic Solidarity  89,126  70,000  70,000  70,000 

IPC Sports Grant  26,116  40,000  40,000 

OLYMPIC INCOME & DEVELOPMENT GRANT TOTAL  2,020,410  2,170,000  110,000  110,000 

EVENTS

BWF Tournaments ( include other income )  21,210,513  16,841,000  23,018,000  23,218,000 

EVENTS INCOME TOTAL  21,210,513  16,841,000  23,018,000  23,218,000 

ADMINISTRATION

Membership Subscriptions  224,400  217,000  227,400  227,400 

ADMINISTRATION INCOME TOTAL  224,400  217,000  227,400  227,400 

FINANCE

Investment Income  125,256  120,000  120,000  120,000 

FINANCE INCOME TOTAL  125,256  120,000  120,000  120,000 

TOTAL INCOME  23,580,579  19,348,000  23,475,400  23,675,400 

BUDGET
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EXPENDITURE ACCOUNTS IN USD

ACTUAL
2017
DEC

 BUDGET
2017

CM 0317 

BUDGET
2018

CM 1117 

 FORECAST 
2019

CM 1117 

OLYMPIC  (8,507)  -    -    -   

YOUTH OLYMPIC  -    15,000  156,460  -   

EVENTS

Total Tournament Operations  9,851,517  10,455,099  15,155,530  14,646,262 

Technical Officials  166,439  389,600  588,410  588,410 

Technical Equipments, Handbook & Uniforms  28,897  23,870  218,950  18,950 

Events Working Group  48,357  76,930  38,660  38,660 

Para-Badminton Committee & Working Group  80,310  85,000  94,300  94,300 

EVENTS TOTAL  10,175,520  11,030,499  16,095,850  15,386,582 

CONTINENTAL CONFEDERATION GRANTS

Base Level Grant (Dev)  1,359,746  1,359,750  1,359,750  1,359,750 

Programme Funds (Dev)  552,847  600,000  600,000  600,000 

CC Capacity Building (Dev)  276,904  200,000  200,000  200,000 

Equipment Grant (Dev)  207,376  300,000  220,000  220,000 

Players Development (Dev)  420,000  420,000  520,000  520,000 

Tournaments Grant (Events)  180,000  180,000  180,000  180,000 

TUC Grant (Events)  -    -    298,000  -   

TO Development Grant (Events)  71,000  90,000  90,000  90,000 

Marketing Grant (Marketing)  74,000  100,000  100,000  100,000 

Women In Badminton Grant (Dev)  90,000  100,000  100,000  100,000 

Para-Badminton Development Grant (Para)  99,207  100,000  100,000  100,000 

Subscription Grant (Admin)  200,327  195,300  204,660  204,660 

Continental Confederation Workshops ( Dev + Events)  40,755  62,000  57,100  57,100 

CONTINENTAL CONFEDERATION GRANTS TOTAL  3,572,162  3,707,050  4,029,510  3,731,510 

DEVELOPMENT & SPORT FOR ALL

Education Activities

Shuttle Time Schools Programme 

     Shuttle Time - Resource Development  69,848  55,000  95,000  50,000 

     Shuttle Time - Equipment Support  -    -    80,000  80,000 

Shuttle Time Schools Programme Total  69,848  55,000  175,000  130,000 

University Badminton  -    10,000  9,900  10,000 

Coaching

     Coaching Resources Project  54,004  85,500  95,500  86,000 

     Coaches Conferences / Master Class  57,688  78,000  36,910  80,000 

Coaching Total  111,692  163,500  132,410  166,000 

Expert Tutor Cost / Fees  37,478  27,000  30,000  33,000 

Education Activities Total  219,018  255,500  347,310  339,000 

Other Development Activities

Research Projects

     Research Projects - Sports Science  117,492  87,000  132,000  150,000 

     Research Projects - Eye / Health -  50,000  50,000  - 

Research Projects Total  117,492  137,000  182,000  150,000 

Capacity Building - Membership Development 174,025  200,000  200,000  200,000 

Special Projects 193,082  181,300  267,000  185,000 

World Junior Champs Cultural Programme  10,000  15,000  15,000  15,000 
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EXPENDITURE ACCOUNTS IN USD

ACTUAL
2017
DEC

 BUDGET
2017

CM 0317 

BUDGET
2018

CM 1117 

 FORECAST 
2019

CM 1117 

Outdoor Shuttlecock Development Project  1,513  100,000  120,000  100,000 

Other Development Activities Total  496,112  633,300  784,000  650,000 

Para-Badminton Development  172,472  195,000  245,000  245,000 

DEVELOPMENT & SPORT FOR ALL TOTAL  887,602  1,083,800  1,376,310  1,234,000 

IOC AND INTERNATIONAL RELATIONS 

Multi Sports Events Support  158  10,000  10,000  10,000 

IOC AND INTERNATIONAL RELATIONS TOTAL  158  10,000  10,000  10,000 
MARKETING

Marketing Collateral - Brochure, PR Gifts, Souvenir  -    20,000  20,000  20,000 

Marketing Strategy Activation - Brand  8,728  10,000  10,000  10,000 

Reporting / Analysis  41,600  100,000  50,000  50,000 

Global Stars Creation Project  -    10,000  -    -   

Media Production / PR Support  144,683  120,000  120,000  120,000 

China Marketing Initiative  76,985  65,000  100,000  100,000 

Trademark of BWF logo's/names  -    100,000  -   

Digital Media Archive  -    20,000  35,000  -   

MARKETING TOTAL  271,996  345,000  435,000  300,000 

COMMUNICATION

Institutional Communication Plan  32,945  50,000  50,000  50,000 

Institutional Media Subscription  10,803  10,000  10,000  10,000 

Media Relation  -    25,000  25,000  25,000 

Star Creation  -    40,000  50,000  50,000 

Digital Strategy  -    400,000  400,000 

Communication Newsletter  4,632  12,500  12,500  12,500 

Media Equipment  -    2,000  2,000  2,000 

Editorial & Graphics  -    30,000  35,000  35,000 

Photograher  34,758  35,000  150,000  150,000 

Material & Publicity for Enhancing Badminton Future  50,000 

COMMUNICATION TOTAL  83,138  204,500  784,500  734,500 

ADMINISTRATION 
Awards  9,858  10,000  15,000  15,000 
Resource Centre  -    5,000  5,000  5,000 

CC Constitution Workshop  30,000 

Integrity Investigation  100,000 
ADMINISTRATION TOTAL  9,858  15,000  150,000  20,000 
INTEGRITY

Anti-Doping - Testing  292,940  324,190  417,420  417,420 

 Match Fixing Monitoring Services   8,150  10,000  68,750  68,750 

 Special Projects - Research - Servicing   -    15,000  -    -   

 Investigation  96,684  68,000  105,000  65,000 

 Legal Advice  -    25,000  10,000  10,000 

Education  13,769  26,950  38,100  38,100 

Integrity Database System and Licenses  60,493  60,000  9,300  9,300 

INTEGRITY TOTAL  472,036  529,140  648,570  608,570 

REPRESENTATION / AD-HOC MEETING-
COMMITTEE, COMMISSION AND STAFF 

 290,585  493,510  429,000  435,000 
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EXPENDITURE ACCOUNTS IN USD

ACTUAL
2017
DEC

 BUDGET
2017

CM 0317 

BUDGET
2018

CM 1117 

 FORECAST 
2019

CM 1117 

GOVERNANCE

AGM  81,319  70,800  99,020  99,020 

Subsidies to Members to Travel to AGM  192,871  273,075  175,000  195,600 

Hotel for Members Delegates to Attend AGM  94,285  110,000  101,920  101,920 

BWF Member Forum  3,260  27,780  27,120  27,120 

Gala Dinner  73,296  70,000  71,810  72,080 

Honoradium for President  62,500  62,000  100,000  100,000 

Council Meetings  757,850  1,052,560  733,375  774,010 

BWF Athletes Commission  39,446  39,400  39,400  39,400 

Disciplinary / Hearing Panels / Appeal  -    25,000  178,600  169,600 

GOVERNANCE TOTAL  1,304,827  1,730,615  1,526,245  1,578,750 

GENERAL OPERATIONS

General Administration

Office Expenses incl Staff Cost  2,432,358  3,628,000  3,164,000  3,450,500 

IT - Secretariat, Events, Website, Digital Museum  289,571  342,500  311,000  311,500 

Statute Book  -    20,000  3,000  3,500 

General Administration Total  2,721,929  3,990,500  3,478,000  3,765,500 

Professional and Other Fees

Insurance  87,429  130,000  143,000  143,000 

Legal Fees  11,406  60,000  66,000  66,000 

Other Professional Services  47,154  10,500  11,500  11,500 

Audit Fees  22,000  30,000  33,000  33,000 

Bad Debts Provisions & Bad Debts Write Off  401,707  30,000  30,000  30,000 

Depreciation Fixed Assets  80,769  75,000  75,000  75,000 

Gain on Disposal of Fixed Assets  (951)

Professional and Others Total  649,514  335,500  358,500  358,500 

GENERAL OPERATIONS TOTAL  3,371,443  4,326,000  3,836,500  4,124,000 

FINANCE

Bank Charges  25,340  40,000  45,000  50,000 

Foreign Exchange ( Gain ) / Loss  (59,868)  25,000  25,000  25,000 

FINANCE TOTAL  (34,528)  65,000  70,000  75,000 

TAXATION  28,373  50,000  60,000  60,000 

BWF TOTAL EXPENDITURE  20,424,663  23,605,114  29,607,945  28,297,912 

BWF TOTAL INCOME  23,580,579  19,348,000  23,475,400  23,675,400 

BWF SURPLUS / ( DEFICIT )  3,155,916  (4,257,114)  (6,132,545)  (4,622,512)

CAPITAL (RESERVES) AS AT 1ST JANUARY  33,817,495  33,817,495  36,973,411  30,840,866

CAPITAL (RESERVES) AS AT 31ST DECEMBER  36,973,411  29,560,381  30,840,866  26,218,354

 SURPLUS / ( DEFICIT )  3,155,916  (4,257,114)  (6,132,545)  (4,622,512)

CONTINGENCY FUND

INVESTMENT IN PROPERTY  -    -    -    -   

OTHER INVESTMENT INSTRUMENTS  -    (5,000,000)  (5,000,000)  -   

CONTINENTAL CONFEDERATION HR GRANTS  -    -    (400,000)  (800,000)

PROJECTED SURPLUS / ( DEFICIT )  3,155,916  (9,257,114)  (11,532,545)  (5,422,512)

CAPITAL (RESERVES) AS AT 1ST JANUARY  33,817,495  33,817,495  36,973,411  25,440,866 

CAPITAL (RESERVES) AS AT 31ST DECEMBER  36,973,411  24,560,381  25,440,866  20,018,354 
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AFRICA - (42)

Algeria, Benin, Botswana, Burundi, Burkina Faso, Cameroon, Central 
African Republic, Congo, Congo Kinshasa, Egypt, Equatorial Guinea, 
Eritrea, Ethiopia, Ghana, Guinea, Ivory Coast, Kenya, Lesotho, Libya, 
Madagascar, Malawi, Mauritania, Mauritius, Morocco, Mozambique, 
Namibia, Niger, Nigeria, Saint Helena, Seychelles, Sierra Leone, 
Somalia, South Africa, Sudan, Swaziland, Tanzania, Togo, Tunisia, 
Uganda, Zambia, Zimbabwe.

ASSOCIATE MEMBER
• Ligue de Badminton Réunion.

ASIA - (43)

Afghanistan, Bahrain, Bangladesh, Bhutan, Brunei, Cambodia, China, 
Chinese Taipei, DPR Korea, East Timor, Hong Kong, India, Indonesia, 
Iran, Iraq, Japan, Jordan, Kazakhstan, Korea, Kuwait, Kyrgyzstan, Laos,
Lebanon, Macau, Malaysia, Maldives, Mongolia, Myanmar, Nepal, 
Pakistan, Palestine, Philippines, Qatar, Saudi Arabia, Singapore, Sri 
Lanka, Syria, Tajikistan, Thailand, Turkmenistan, United Arab Emirates, 
Uzbekistan, Vietnam.
 

EUROPE - (52)

Albania, Armenia, Austria, Azerbaijan, Belarus, Belgium, Bosnia & 
Herzegovina, Bulgaria, Croatia, Cyprus, Czech Republic, Denmark, 
England, Estonia, Faroe Islands, Finland, France, Georgia, Germany, 
Gibraltar, Greece, Greenland, Hungary, Iceland, Ireland, Israel, Italy, 
Latvia, Liechtenstein, Lithuania, Luxembourg, Macedonia, Malta, 
Moldova, Monaco, Montenegro, Netherlands, Norway, Poland, 
Portugal, Romania, Russia, Scotland, Serbia, Slovakia, Slovenia, Spain,
Sweden, Switzerland, Turkey, Ukraine, Wales.

OCEANIA - (15)

Australia, Cook Islands, Fiji, Guam, Kiribati, Nauru, New Zealand, 
Norfolk Island, Papua New Guinea, Samoa, Tahiti, Tonga, Tuvalu.

ASSOCIATE MEMBERS
• Northern Marianas

• New Caledonia

PAN-AMERICA - (37)

Argentina, Aruba, Barbados, Bermuda, Brazil, Bolivia, Canada, Cayman 
Islands, Chile, Colombia, Costa Rica, Cuba, Curacao, Dominican 
Republic, Ecuador, El Salvador, Falkland Islands, Grenada, Guatemala, 
Guyana, Haiti, Honduras, Jamaica, Mexico, Panama, Paraguay, Peru, 
Puerto Rico, St. Lucia, Surinam, Trinidad & Tobago, USA, Uruguay, 
Venezuela

ASSOCIATE MEMBER
• French Guiana

• Ligue de Badminton de Guadaloupe

• Martinique

MEMBERS
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of the Badminton World Federation will be held in Convention Center A1, Level 22, 
Centara Grand & Bangkok Convention Centre at Central World on Saturday 19 May 2018 at 1000 hours.

1. PRELIMINARY BUSINESS

 1.1 President’s Remarks
 1.2 Appointment of scrutineers
 1.3 Roll call

2. MINUTES

 2.1 To confirm the Minutes of the Annual General Meeting held on Saturday 20 May 2017 (Annexure A).

3. COUNCIL REPORT

 3.1 To receive the Report of Council and its Committees, and other reports for the year ending 31 December 2017. 
 3.2 To adopt the Financial Statements, duly audited, for the year ending 31 December 2017.
 3.3 To receive the 2018 budget and the provisional budget for 2019.

4. PROPOSALS – BWF COUNCIL

The Council of the BWF proposes the following to the membership for approval: 

4.1 Laws of Badminton – Clause 7, 8 and 16

  • Clause 7 – Scoring System
  • Clause 8 – Change of Ends 
  • Clause 16 – Continuous Play

To approve amendments to the Laws of Badminton, Clause 7.1, 7.2, 7.4, 7.5, 8.1, 16.2 and 16.5 as below (amendments are in red).

It is proposed that these amendments to the Laws of Badminton will come into effect in week 50, starting Monday 10 December 2018.

 Clause 7 – Scoring System

7.1 A match shall consist of the best of three five games, unless otherwise arranged (Part II Section 1B Appendix 2 and 3) (BWF 
  Statutes, Sections 4.1.3 and 4.1.4). 
7.2 A game shall be won by the side which first scores 21 11 points, except as provided in Law 7.4 and 7.5.

NOTICE OF THE 
ANNUAL GENERAL 
MEETING 2018
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7.3 The side winning a rally shall add a point to its score. A side shall win a rally, if the opposing side commits a ‘fault’ or the 
  shuttle ceases to be in play because it touches the surface of the court inside the opponent’s court. 
7.4 If the score becomes 20-all 10 all, the side which gains a two point lead first, shall win that game.
7.5 If the score becomes 29-all 14-all, the side scoring the 30th point 15th point shall win that game.
7.6 The side winning a game shall serve first in the next game.

 Clause 8 - Change of Ends

8.1  Players shall change ends:

 8.1.1 at the end of the first game;
 8.1.2 at the end of the second game; if there is to be a third game; and
 8.1.3  in the third game when a side first scores 11 points at the end of the third game, if there is to be a fourth game;
 8.1.4 at the end of the fourth game, if there is to be a fifth game; and 
 8.1.5 in the fifth game when a side first scores six points.

8.2 If the ends are not changed as indicated in Law 8.1, it shall be done so as soon as the mistake is discovered and when the 
  shuttle is not in play. The existing score shall stand.

Clause 16 – Continuous Play, Misconduct & Penalties

 16.1  Play shall be continuous from the first service until the match is concluded, except as allowed in Laws 16.2 and 16.3, and, for 
  Wheelchair Badminton, 16.5.3.
 16.2  Intervals and Time-outs

16.2.1 Intervals not exceeding 60 seconds during each game when the leading score reaches 11 points and; between the  
  first and second games, second and third games, third and fourth games, and fourth and fifth games shall be   
  allowed in all matches.
16.2.2   not exceeding 120 seconds between the first and second game and between the second and third game shall be 
  allowed in all matches. Where implemented, the rules regarding time-outs apply (BWF Statutes, Section 4.1.9).

  (For a televised match, the Referee may decide before the match that intervals as in Law 16.2 are mandatory and of fixed 
  duration).

 16.5  Advice and leaving the court 

 16.5.1  Only when the shuttle is not in play (Law 15), shall a player be permitted to receive advice during a match. Only during 
  time-outs shall a player be permitted to receive advice during a match.
16.5.2 No player shall leave the court during a match without the umpire’s permission, except during the intervals or   
  during time-outs. as described in Law 16.2.

Rationale 

Given the analysis and testing on the proposed amendments, the BWF Council proposes this new scoring system because it will bring 
more peaks, provide more excitement and greater entertainment value for spectators and fans and it will also shorten the length of 
matches as described in the material on pages 13 – 23 of this annual report.

The amendments to Clause 8.1 is a consequence of the amendments to the scoring system (Clause 7.1, 7.2, 7.4 and 7.5). The amendments 
ensures the continuation of the current principles for change of ends.

The amendments to Clause 16.2 and 16.5 is to ensure more efficient field of play management.

4.2 Laws of Badminton – Continuous Play, Misconduct & Penalties

To approve amendments to the Laws of Badminton, Clause 16.6.3 as detailed below - (amendments are in red).

It is proposed that this amendment to the Laws of Badminton will come into effect immediately.

16.6 A player shall not:

  16.6.1 deliberately cause delay in, or suspension of, play; 
  16.6.2  deliberately modify or damage the shuttle in order to change its speed or its flight; 
  16.6.3 behave in an offensive or inappropriate manner; or
  16.6.4  be guilty of misconduct not otherwise covered by the Laws of Badminton.
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Rationale

This is a clarification and it enables umpires to warn or sanction a player for inappropriate gestures that may not be offensive but are 
inappropriate for the situation in which the gesture is made.

4.3 BWF Statutes – Section 4.1.4 – Alternative Laws of Badminton

To approve amendments to Other Scoring Systems and rename this as the Alternative Laws of Badminton as detailed below (amendments 
are in red).

It is proposed that these amendments to the Laws of Badminton will come into effect in week 50, starting Monday 10 December 2018.

 Section 4.1.4 – Other Alternative Scoring Systems

Please note that for each of the Alternative Scoring Systems, all of the Laws of Badminton (BWF Statutes, Section 4.1 – Laws of Badminton) 
apply, except where specifically noted below. 

It is permissible to play by prior arrangement, either:  

1. one game of 21 points, or
2. the best of 3 three games of 15 points.
3. the best of five three games of 11 21 points.

 In the case of 3 above, the following variations shall apply to the Laws of Badminton:

 Clause 7 – Scoring System

 7.1 A match shall consist of the best of five three games.
 7.2 A game shall be won by the side which first scores 11 21 points.
 7.4 If the score becomes 20-all, the side which gains a two point lead first, shall win that game.
 7.5 If the score becomes 29-all, the side scoring the 30th point shall win that game.

 Clause 8 – Change of Ends

 8.1.2 at the end of the second game, if there is to be a third game; and
 8.1.3 in third game when a side first scores 11 points. at the end of the third game, if there is to be a fourth game; 
 8.1.4 at the end of the fourth game, if there is to be a fifth game; and 
 8.1.5 in the fifth game when a side first scores 6 points.

 Clause 16 – Continuous Play, Misconduct & Penalties

 16.2 Intervals
  
  16.2.1 not exceeding 60 seconds only in the fifth game during each game, when the leading score reaches  6 11 points; and
  16.2.2 not exceeding 120 second between the first and second games, and between the second and third games, third and 
   fourth games, and fourth and fifth games shall be allowed in the matches.

Rationale 

This is a consequence to the change of the Laws of Badminton – Scoring System as detailed above in agenda item 4.1.

4.4 BWF Statutes – Section 4.1.9 – Time-Outs and Advice

To approve a new section to the BWF Statutes which defines the procedures for Time-Outs and Advice (amendments are in red).

It is proposed that these amendments to the Laws of Badminton will come into effect in week 50, starting Monday 10 December 2018.

BWF Statutes – Section 4.1.9 – Time-Outs and Advice

Applicability

•     BWF sanctioned Tournaments Grades 1-3.
•     Other Tournaments where notified before the start of the Tournament.
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1. Time-Outs

1.1 A player/pair is permitted one time-out of a maximum of 120 seconds to be requested in either the first game, second game, 
  third game, or fourth game. 
1.2 Should a fifth game be necessary, each player/pair is permitted an additional time-out of a maximum of 120 seconds.

2. Player Time-out Request

2.1  The request for a time-out must be made immediately after the conclusion of a rally, including immediately at the conclusion of 
  a game.
       
  2.1.1 Should the request for a time-out be made immediately after the conclusion of a game, the interval before the next 
   game will be a maximum of 120 seconds.

2.2 The request for a time-out must be made verbally by calling “Time-out” and can be accompanied by a hand-signal of a “T”.

3.   Advice
 
3.1 Only during time-outs shall a player be permitted to receive advice during a match.
3.2 Coaches/Team Managers will be allowed to enter the Field of Play / Court area to speak to their respective player/pair.

  3.2.1 The time-out starts when the request is granted by the Umpire; the Coach/Team Manager can advise their player/pair 
   during the time-out until instructed to leave the Field of Play / Court area by the Umpire.

Rationale

The new section details how Intervals, Time-Outs and Advice work operationally.

4.5 Laws of Badminton – Clause 9 - Service

To approve amendments to the Laws of Badminton to Clause 9.1.6 and 9.1.7 as below to take effect 10 December 2018 following sufficient 
time for testing of Fixed Height Experimental Law 9.1.6.2. (amendments are in red)

… AND …

To mandate to Council the following:

1. To make changes to the service height if the experience from international tournaments proves that this is more suitable. 
2. To reinstate Law 9.1.7 in case the experience shows the need to keep this rule related to the shaft and racket head pointing in a 
  downward direction.
3. To reject the new service height rules in case the experience with the rules are not successful, and revert back to the original 
  service rules.
4. To make any such changes in point 1, 2 and 3 above must be made and not again changed by Council latest by 10 December 
  2018.

Clause 9 - Service

9.1 In a correct service.

 9.1.1 neither side shall cause undue delay to the delivery of the service once the server and the receiver are ready for the service. 
 9.1.2 on completion of the backward movement of the server’s racket head, any delay in the start of the service (Law 9.2) shall be 
  considered to be an undue delay; 
 9.1.3   the server and the receiver shall stand within diagonally opposite service courts (Diagram A) without touching the boundary 
  lines of these service courts; 

  9.1.3.1  In Para-badminton Wheelchair and Standing Classes playing half-court, Diagram D and F, respectively, apply.

9.1.4   some part of both feet of the server and the receiver shall remain in contact with the surface of the court in a stationary position 
  from the start of the service (Law 9.2) until the service is delivered (Law 9.3); 

 9.1.4.1  In Wheelchair Badminton: from the start of the service and until the service is delivered, the wheels of the server 
  and the receiver must be stationary, except the natural counter  movement of the server’s wheelchair. 

9.1.5    the server’s racket shall initially hit the base of the shuttle;
9.1.6  the whole shuttle shall be below the server’s waist at the instant of 1.15 metres from the surface of the court at the instant 
  of being hit by the server’s racket. The waist shall be considered to be an imaginary line round the body, level with the lowest part 
  of the server’s bottom rib.

9.1.6.1  In Wheelchair Badminton, the whole shuttle shall be below the server’s armpit at the instant of being hit by the server’s 
  racket.
9.1.6.2  For Fixed Height Experiment: The whole of the shuttle shall be below 1.15 metres from the surface of the court at the 
  instant of being hit by the server’s racket.
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9.1.7 the shaft and the racket head of the server’s racket at the instant of hitting the shuttle shall be pointing in a downward direction;

9.1.7.1  For Fixed Height Experiment: 9.1.7 does not apply; 

[Note: 9.1.8 therefore becomes 9.1.7, 9.1.9 becomes 9.1.8, and 9.1.10 becomes 9.1.9. The wording of these clauses do not change 
and neither does the wording on clause 9.2, 9.3, 9.4 and 9.5 of the Laws of Badminton which follows on from the above.]

Rationale

To make the service rules and the judging simpler and more objective to secure higher level of fairness in matches for the players.

For many years players especially, and to some extent service judges, have provided feedback that the service rules have been difficult to 
manage. This has been a key area of concern and many players (especially doubles players) have been struggling with the interpretation 
of these Laws. Furthermore the Badminton Association of Malaysia in May 2017 at the AGM, put forward a proposal to agree on a fixed 
service height at 1.10 m or whatever height was appropriate after having tested the system in tournaments. This proposal was accepted 
by the BWF AGM and preparations have been ongoing to introduce the test – giving players a transition period before starting the test and 
making sure that service judges were trained.

Changing to a fixed height provides the following:

• Easier for umpires to determine the height (the bottom rib is not always easy to determine). This in turn will create consistency 
  in the service judging, which is one of the things players have been requesting.
• Possible to include tools to help service judges to assess the serve – which is difficult with a service height that can vary a 
  lot depending on the height of the player. Presently, a conventional physical tool has been created for the experimental period, 
  where the feedback from many service judges has been that this does make it easier for them to assess the serve.

The implementation date of 10 December 2018 has been proposed to give players a transition period to practice and get used to the new 
Laws. The service height Laws will continue as experimental laws until 10 December 2018. The implementation date is set, so the new 
rules will be implemented at the HSBC World Tour Finals in December.

Secondly, at the time of the AGM the Service Height rules have only been used for less than three months and Council wishes to be given 
a mandate to make any adjustments to the Laws in advance of the Olympic and Paralympic Qualification period starting in 2019, based 
on a greater time frame for the experimental Fixed Height Service Law.

4.6 Alternative Laws of Badminton - Service Laws

To approve amendments to the Alternative Service as detailed below (amendments are in red). This shall come into effect on 10 December 
2018, notwithstanding the delegation provided to Council to amend based on the Experimental Fixed Height Service Law implementation 
currently underway. 

Alternative Service Laws

Please note that for each of the Alternative Laws of Badminton, all of the Laws of Badminton (BWF Statutes, Section 4.1 – Laws of 
Badminton) apply, except where specifically noted below. 

9.1.6 a) the whole shuttle shall be below the server’s waist at the instant of being hit by the server’s racket. The waist shall be 
  considered to be an imaginary line round the body, level with the lowest part of the server’s bottom rib;
  b) the shaft and the racket head of the server’s racket at the instant of hitting the shuttle shall be pointing in a downward 
  direction.

Rationale

The alternative Service Laws may apply to contexts where proposal 4.5 above to Laws of Badminton to Clause 9.1.6 and 9.1.7 do not apply.

4.7 Approval of Amendments to the Constitution

To approve amendments to the Constitution as presented in Annexure B

Rationale 

The amendments enhance the content of the constitution around key areas of the BWF’s work. The amendments also reduce repetition 
and increases clarity. 

Therefore there are two types of amendments:

• those that are substantive and 
• those that are more superficial in nature including sub-edits, amendments to enhance clarity of meaning of existing content and 
  reduction of repetition of what exists elsewhere in the constitution.

The notes in Annexure B against the proposed amendments gives the description of the change and where appropriate, the rationale.
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4.8 Approval of Amendments to the Constitution

To approve amendments to the Constitution as presented in Annexure B.

35.   ALTERATION OF THE LAWS OF BADMINTON OR OF RECOMMENDATIONS TO TECHNICAL OFFICIALS 

35.1 No alteration shall be made to The Laws of Badminton (understood as Section 4.1 of the BWF Statutes excluding 
  subsections) may only be altered through a decision of except at a General Meeting. Any proposal embodying such 
  alteration, or one having a like effect, must be carried by a majority of two-thirds of the Votes Cast. This Clause shall 
  not be altered without the unanimous consent of a General Meeting. 

35.1  Council shall have power, on behalf of the Federation, to make alterations to the Recommendations to technical 
  officials, Appendix 4 (Vocabulary), Appendix 6 (Additional Equipment for Para - Badminton) and Appendix 7 (Index to 
  the Laws of Badminton) provided these alterations do not change the Laws of Badminton. 

35.2  Council shall have power, on behalf of the Federation, to authorise temporary (for a well-defined period) experimental 
  variations to the Laws of Badminton.

Rationale 

The amendments here retain the right of the General Meeting as the only body able to amend the Laws of Badminton, however, the 
amendments allow Council to amend any of the subsections to the Laws (formally Appendix).

The BWF rules and regulations have been restructured and the naming conventions have changed and they are now published as BWF 
STATUTES. 

The subsections of the Laws of Badminton were previously called Appendix which are subsections to the Laws of Badminton and 
operationalize the wording of the Laws. 

The Council has the authority to amend Recommendations to Technical Officials, to Appendix 4 (Vocabulary), to Appendix 6 (Additional 
Equipment for Para-Badminton) and to Appendix 7 Index to the Laws of Badminton. 

Appendix of the Laws and now called Sections and currently consist of:

Section 4.1.1.      Instructions to Technical Officials (ITTO)
Section 4.1.2.      Variations in Court Equipment
Section 4.1.3.      Handicap Matches
Section 4.1.4.      Other Scoring Systems
Section 4.1.5.      Vocabulary
Section 4.1.6.      Imperial Measurements
Section 4.1.7.      Additional Equipment for Para-Badminton
Section 4.1.8.      Instant Review System 

The amendments proposed therefore empowers the Council to be able to amend these Sections which are operational in nature.

The amendments proposed maintain the right of only a General Meeting to change the Laws of Badminton.

5. PROPOSAL BY GERMAN BADMINTON ASSOCIATION 

The German Badminton Association proposes the following amendment to Clause 22.1 of the BWF constitution to include the Athletes’ 
Commission Chair as a member of the Federation’s Executive Board. 
  
Proposed Wording

Clause 22.1 The Federation shall have an Executive Board comprising the Officers (Clause 18), and the Chairs of the Committees formed 
by Council and identified by Council as Executive Board positions and the Chair of the Athletes’ Commission.

Rationale

The BWF Strategic Plan 2016 - 2020 sets out four Strategic Focuses with athletes at the centre of these.  Accordingly, the athlete voice 
should be represented in the highest decision-making bodies of the BWF. Therefore, the Athletes Commission Chair, as the elected 
representative of the global badminton player community and a Council member, should also have a full voting position in the Federation’s 
Executive Board. 
  

6. SUBSCRIPTION

 To consider Council’s proposal that the unit of subscription for the year 2019 should be set at US$200 per unit (unchanged).

7. AUDITORS

 Council proposes that the services of BDO Malaysia be maintained.
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8. ANY OTHER BUSINESS

9. NEXT MEETING

The next Annual General Meeting is proposed to be held in May 2019 in conjunction with the TOTAL BWF Sudirman Cup 2019 in Nanning, 
China. 

The exact date will be announced to the membership, not later than 30 September 2018.

By order of the Council of the Federation.

Thomas Lund
Secretary General
30 March 2018
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Tontowi Ahmad/Liliyana Natsir
World Champion 2017 - Mixed Doubles

BWF ANNUAL REPORT 2017 99



BWF ANNUAL REPORT 2017100

The Badminton World Federation would like to acknowledge and 
record our appreciation to the following organisations, associations 
and parties for the assistance rendered to ensure the success of the 
Annual General Meeting and production of the Annual Report.

They are:

• Member Associations

• Continental Confederations

• BWF Council

• BadmintonPhoto – Official BWF photo agency

• BWF staff

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS





BADMINTON WORLD FEDERATION

Unit 1, Level 29
Naza Tower
10 Persiaran KLCC
50088 Kuala Lumpur

+603 2631 9188

+603 2631 9688

www.bwfbadminton.com
www.bwfcorporate.com
www.bwfshuttletime.com

bwfbadminton

bwfmedia


